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4 RICHARDS BAY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT ZONE

GENERAL INFORMATION

1. PUBLIC ENTITY’S GENERAL INFORMATION 

REGISTERED NAME:  Richards Bay Industrial Development Zone    
      Company SOC Ltd

REGISTRATION NUMBER: 2002/009856/07

PHYSICAL ADDRESS:  Captain’s Walk Building
      Tuzi Gazi Waterfront
      Pioneer Road, Richards Bay

POSTAL ADDRESS:   Private Bag X1005
      Richards Bay, 3900

TELEPHONE NUMBER:  +27 35 788 0571

FAX NUMBER:   +27 35 788 0578

EMAIL ADDRESS:   info@rbidz.co.za

WEBSITE ADDRESS:   www.rbidz.co.za

INTERNAL AUDITORS: KZN Provincial Treasury: Internal Audit Services

EXTERNAL AUDITORS:  SizweNtsalubaGobodo Inc.

BANKERS:   ABSA Ltd

COMPANY SECRETARY: Adv KN Harvey

PART A
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6 RICHARDS BAY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT ZONE

PART A

An IDZ emphasizes the encouragement of value added activities as the main purpose of attracting foreign 
companies into the IDZs, thereby ensuring that benefi ciated products are exported from South Africa whilst in the 
process of benefi ciation technological innovation is transferred to local companies. The key reason for developing 
the zones is for developing industrial capability through utilizing and learning from new technologies from the 
foreign fi rms rather than just solely generating Foreign Direct Investment.

The focus of the RBIDZ is the creation of an industrial complex with strategic economic advantage. RBIDZ is viewed 
by the province as a location for the establishment of strategic investments based on industrial priorities referred to 
in our Industrial Development Strategy, Export Strategy and Investment Promotion Strategy all of which are aligned 
to the IPAP and New Growth Path. The RBIDZ strategy is specifi c about how through its locational advantage, 
particularly with respect to its link to the Richards Bay Port; it will take advantage of existing industrial capacity, 
promote integration with local industry and increase value-added production.

There needs to be a strong business case linking the potential export activity of the RBIDZ to the capacity of the 
Port of Richards Bay. The link to a port is a key defi ning characteristic of the Zone as the intention is to primarily 
attract foreign export-oriented companies that will be transferring skills and new technology to the local economy 
through their interaction with domestic fi rms down the value chain. 

The availability of feedstock such as aluminium, heavy metals, various chemicals, wood, pulp, paper, agricultural 
products, gas, coal and electricity offer numerous downstream manufacturing possibilities and almost unlimited 
opportunities for investors. 

The abundant raw material and natural resources such as granite, manganese, coal, ore etc are exported via the 
Port of Richards Bay and hence provide further opportunities which are being researched through the Business 
Development Unit. The RBIDZ is located at a deep water port, supported by good rail, road, and air transport, 
available power and water supply, and adequate unskilled and semi-skilled labour. In its efforts to realise its 
long-term potential the RBIDZ has, through the formulation of a 50 year master plan, identifi ed areas for expansion, 
both geographically and in terms of potential industries it can attract. We believe that this effort, together with 
the proposed conversion of the RBIDZ into a Special Economic Zone in terms of the National Special Economic 
Zones Bill and the incentives for locators in special economic zones proposed by the National Government will 
greatly enhance the potential of the RBIDZ to attract investment. 

“The focus of the RBIDZ is the 

creation of an industrial complex with 

strategic economic advantage.”

Honourable Michael Mabuyakhulu,
MPP MEC for Economic Development and Tourism

GENERAL INFORMATION ...continued

FOREWORD BY MEC
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Further incentives that should be unpacked in the policy based on the fact that there are proposed customs 
control areas relate to relief from customs duties. When we consider incentives that involve customs control it is 
important to consider the costs of administration as well as the need to discourage rent seeking or mobility of 
investors when a better short term incentive is available elsewhere.  

It is for the reasons set out above that the provincial government sees the RBIDZ as a key driver for the growth 
of both the Province of KwaZulu-Natal and South Africa as a whole. In the period to which this report relates 
the provincial government appropriated over R62 million to the RBIDZ, in addition to which the dti contributed 
a further R182 million. This is to ensure the development of land as it is extremely diffi cult to market unserviced 
land which is months away from being ready for building. Investors want to start building their factories
in much shorter timeframes, thus having developed land available will greatly enhance the ability of the RBIDZ to
attract investors. 

The provincial government has also appointed a new King III compliant Board with substantial experience in 
both the public and private sectors to oversee the running of the RBIDZ. This Board consists of two members 
representing National Government Departments, two representatives from the City of uMhlathuze, a senior 
offi cial from Transnet and no less than seven persons appointed from the private sector, in addition to two 
executive directors (i.e CEO and CFO). 

I have every confi dence that this newly appointed Board will contribute signifi cantly to the future success of the 
RBIDZ. I would like to take this opportunity to thank them for their commitment and efforts made since joining 
the RBIDZ. 

I must also thank the management and staff of the RBIDZ, including the former CEO, Mr Ike Nxedlana, whose 
contract terminated at the end of the fi nancial year, for the efforts that they have made. 

Honourable Michael Mabuyakhulu
MPP MEC for Economic Development and Tourism
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GENERAL INFORMATION ...continued

INTRODUCTION
The current Board was only appointed in July 2012 and have had to quickly acclimatise to the exciting potential of 
the IDZ environment, where every new investor can play a role in making a signifi cant contribution to the benefi t 
of the lives of people not only in KwaZulu-Natal but throughout the Country.

OVERVIEW
The RBIDZ is commonly known as the third IDZ. Although currently less developed than the two IDZ’s in the 
Eastern Cape, its strategic location and local resources, such as wood and titanium, provide the RBIDZ with the 
potential to be the leading IDZ in the country. While the potential of the RBIDZ has yet to be fully realised, there 
are major developments at hand which will accelerate the development of the RBIDZ to enable it to achieve its 
full potential and to make a meaningful difference in the Province in order to create jobs, improve benefi ciation 
of minerals and improve the lives of all. The steps taken in the year under review to develop Phase 1A will mean 
that the RBIDZ fi nally has developed land available for immediate occupation, the absence of which has in the 
past impacted negatively on its attractiveness as a development location.

STRATEGIC RELATIONSHIPS 
The RBIDZ has many key strategic relationships which have to be carefully nurtured and protected in order to ensure 
its success. Foremost among these are its relationships with the dti and the DEDT who provide the critical funding 
needed to develop the RBIDZ and without whose support it would not exist. While the dti provides funding for 
infrastructure, the DEDT provides funding for both infrastructure and the operational costs which must be funded 
until the RBIDZ becomes self-sustaining. Both entities also provide various other forms of support.

Further key stakeholders are uThungulu District Municipality and the City of uMhlathuze, the host local authorities 
of the RBIDZ. It is important that the RBIDZ and the local authorities have a symbiotic relationship, where the 
more investors the RBIDZ brings, the bigger the rates base of the City eventually contributing to the economic 
growth of the District.

Other key relations within the public sector are those with Transnet, in both the Port of Richards Bay and its railway 
operations. International experience has shown that good logistics is a key factor in establishing a successful IDZ 
and Transnet, as the Nation’s mover, will play a key role in ensuring that investors have access to effective and 
effi cient logistics.

“RBIDZ has many key strategic 

relationships which have to be carefully 

nurtured and protected in order to 

ensure its success.”

Ms Bongi Kunene
Board Chairperson

FOREWORD BY THE CHAIRPERSON

PART A
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Other key state stakeholders included Eskom, as many potential investors would be high energy users. In regard 
to the energy usage the RBIDZ does have the advantage of being on a gas line, whose operators, Sasol Gas and 
Spring Lights Gas are therefore key potential players.

Other Government Departments, in particular Water Affairs and the Provincial department of Agriculture and 
Environmental affairs will also play a key role in ensuring the success of the RBIDZ.

CHALLENGES FACED BY BOARD
The Board experienced a number of key challenges, in particular that of ensuring that suffi cient developed land is 
available to meet demand and attracting suitable investors in line with the development objectives of the region. 
Whilst the processes to transfer the land from the City of uMhlathuze to the RBIDZ have been put in place, the 
transfer has not been fi nalised at year end.

The company also needs to have suffi cient capacity in place, especially in strategic positions, in order to continue 
developing the Zone, while still attracting new investments and providing services of an internationally comparative 
standard to investors in the Zone. 

SUCCESSES 
Successes achieved have included the continued development of Phase 1A and the continuing development of the 
50 year Master Plan, both of which will benefi t the Zone in the future. From a governance point of view the Board 
has established all required committees and has also created an Infrastructure Committee to assist in facilitating the 
development of the Zone, ensuring that capital projects are properly evaluated and assist the Board in evaluating 
potential investors. This Annual Report will show that the RBIDZ has enjoyed two consecutive years of clean audits. 

As the country moves from an IDZ philosophy into the era of SEZ’s, the RBIDZ, while facing greater competition 
for resources and investors, stands to gain from its strategic location and the ability to attract a greater scope of 
investors. A key element of this is the proposed incentives, which, for the fi rst time, will include incentives unique 
to SEZ’s.   

THE YEAR AHEAD
The year ahead should be exciting for the RBIDZ with a number of key potential investors expressing interest in 
locating in Richards Bay. This will no doubt cause the RBIDZ to accelerate its plans for expansion as set out in its 
50 year Master Plan. The year will also see the fi nalisation of land transfer processes and fi lling of key positions 
and a combination of all these will set the Company to exceed expectations. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
I wish to express my appreciation to all the key stakeholders of the RBIDZ, in particular the Minister of Trade and 
Industry and the Province of KwaZulu-Natal through its MEC for Economic Development and Tourism. I also wish 
to thank the uThungulu District and the City of uMhlathuze for being our partners in developing the region. I also 
thank local industry, other government departments, state institutions such as Eskom and Transnet and the public. 
Most of all I would like to thank my fellow Board members and staff of the RBIDZ, without whose efforts and 
enthusiasm all would come to nought. In this regard I would especially like to thank the RBIDZ’s former CEO, Mr 
Ike Nxedlana as well as former directors, for the solid foundation they laid and which will allow the RBIDZ to go 
from strength to strength.

In conclusion we look forward to engaging with all our stakeholders for the greater good of the RBIDZ. 

Ms Bongi Kunene
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GENERAL INFORMATION ...continued

INTRODUCTION
The RBIDZ envisions reaching a state of full operation as per the IDZ mandate and since 2009 the management 
of the RBIDZ begun re-positioning the entity towards achievement of this objective. The current situation of the 
RBIDZ can be summarised as follows:

• The entity has been established and has obtained the required IDZ operator permit;

• After a major recruitment drive, the entity has a staff compliment that is capable of bringing the IDZ to a 
  state of full operation;

• 221 Ha of industrial land have been procured (Land transfer processes are underway);

• The land was purchased as a Greenfi eld, Tata Steel is the only investor located in the Zone;

• There are 62 hectares earmarked for light industries, 76 hectares for general industries and the remaining 83
  hectares form part of the wetlands, buffer zones and conservation amenities;

• For the 2012/13 fi nancial year, the RBIDZ has secured grant funding of R 104 million to fund capital and
  operating expenditure and a further R140m has been made available by National Government for this
  purpose during the fi nancial year.

SPENDING TRENDS OF THE PUBLIC ENTITY 
Three major transactions were concluded during the fi nancial year. Firstly being the R76.4million payment to 
the City of uMhlathuze for the bulk contributions and provision of electrical switching station in Phase 1A of 
the RBIDZ, the City has started the procurement process of the provision of electrical services to the RBIDZ.

The second transaction being the award of R139 million for stage 2 bulk earthworks tender for Phase 1A, the 
project commenced in September 2012. The original project programme was estimated to run for 24 months, 

“Focus has been on fully

developing Phase 1A of the IDZ

while detailed planning is pursued for

Phase 1F.”

Mr Mohlomi Nkopane 
(Acting CEO)

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S OVERVIEW

PART A
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but there has since been interventions to reduce the timeframe by 6 months ensuring that serviced sites are 
available to investors 6 months earlier.

The third transaction being the tender award made in January 2013 for provision of bulk services to stage 1 of 
Phase 1A for an amount of R28.9 million. This project resumed in February 2013 and the work is expected to be 
concluded in 12 months time.

CAPACITY CONSTRAINTS AND CHALLENGES FACING THE PUBLIC ENTITY
The entity had two vacancies at executive level namely; Business Development and Marketing Executive and 
Infrastructure Planning and Development Executive. The process of fi lling in these positions is in progress and will 
be concluded in the new fi nancial year.

NEW OR PROPOSED ACTIVITIES
The 50 year Master Plan that commenced in the reporting year would be concluded in the new fi nancial year. The 
plan would identify possible expansion areas and target sectors to be pursued by the RBIDZ. Consultation with 
key stakeholders has commenced to secure support from all strategic stakeholders identifi ed.

REQUESTS FOR ROLLOVER OF FUNDS
The rollover of funds amounting to R4 million had been secured from the Provincial Treasury for funds appropriated 
by DEDT. The R4 million will be utilised to fund the fi nalisation of the 50 year Master Plan project. The additional 
funding from the dti was approved in terms of the funding agreement to be spent over a period of two fi nancial 
years. Procurement plans are in place and invitation of tenders for the proposed projects are in progress.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

SCM PROCESSES AND SYSTEMS IN PLACE
In line with the National Treasury SCM Framework and applicable regulations, the RBIDZ has established and 
maintained appropriate supply chain management systems for the acquisition and disposal of goods and services. 
The SCM Framework seeks to prevent irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure. The SCM policy was amended 
by the Board to align with the latest SCM reforms or developments prescribed by National Treasury. The entity 
managed to improve its Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment (BBBEE) contribution from level 6 to 4. The 
assessment was based on the 2011/12 fi nancial year and anticipates further improvement when the assessment 
is conducted for the subsequent fi nancial year.
  

PREVIOUS AUDIT REPORT MATTERS
Action plans are in place to address the audit fi ndings for the 2012/13 fi nancial year. The detailed action plan 
with timelines has been presented to the Audit and Risk Committee and further status reports will be tabled at 
future meetings of the Committee.

ECONOMIC VIABILITY
The entity is still preparing the land for potential investors to locate. Focus has been on fully developing Phase 1A 
of the RBIDZ while detailed planning is pursued for Phase 1F. The investment pipeline indicates investors at various 
stages of readiness to locate within the RBIDZ. We anticipate few investors signing up and starting construction 
in 2014/15 fi nancial year after the environmental impact assessment process is concluded and approved.

PLANS FOR THE FUTURE
The 50 year Master Plan will be fi nalised in the new fi nancial year incorporating a 10 year Business Plan which will 
be utilised to support applications for funding for the 2014/15 MTEF cycle. Applications would be submitted to 
various funding institutions including the SEZ Fund, Jobs Fund and other developmental funding institutions like 
the Industrial Development Corporation and Development Bank of Southern Africa to fund potential investors 
and viable projects.
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GENERAL INFORMATION / CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S OVERVIEW ...continued

In the 2012/13 fi nancial year an application was made to the Jobs Fund for co-funding option of the development 
of Phase 1A of the RBIDZ.

The outlook for the future is to focus on the following:-
 • Take ownership of land
 • Provision of serviced sites
 • Sign potential investors
 • Complete and implement the 50 year Master plan
 • Source funding for expansion
 • Fill strategic posts
 • Maintain clean audit

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS
We wish to thank the Accounting Authority (Board) for the support and guidance during the period under review, 
the oversight structures of the Board for the sterling role they played. In this regard I would especially like to 
thank the RBIDZ’s former CEO, Mr Ike Nxedlana, the Executive Team of the Company for tireless efforts under 
trying circumstances, the support staff of the company for their commitment to the course, the DEDT, the dti 
and Provincial Treasury for keeping us focussed on the mandate of the IDZ program.

M Nkopane
(Acting CEO)

PART A
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GENERAL INFORMATION ...continued

14 RICHARDS BAY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT ZONE

BONGIWE KUNENE
Bongiwe Kunene (Chairperson) - She holds BA, BA (Hons) (Econ), MSc (Dev Economics). 
She is the head of Public Sector Banking at Standard Bank, South Africa. She is responsible 
for the Bank’s portfolio comprising municipal fi nance; provincial government development 
fi nance; fi nancing of national, provincial and municipal owned entities, and banking services 
for social sectors including education and health.

MEL CLARK
Mel Clark (Deputy Chairperson) - He holds BSc Soc, Pg Dip. 
He has more than 10 years experience in top management within economic development 
and investment fi nance institutions in KwaZulu-Natal. He was instrumental in driving a host 
of Government-supported economic initiatives in the province, having been Chief Executive 
Offi cer of the KwaZulu-Natal Economic Council, Head of the KwaZulu-Natal Department of 
Economic Development and, lately, Chief Executive Offi cer of the KwaZulu-Natal Growth Fund.

TINA EBOKA
Tina Eboka - She holds BS (Appl Mathematics), BS (Textile Engineering), MBA.
She is a Non-Executive Board Member and Interim Executive, Tina Eboka & Associates; Chair 
for International Trade and Administration Commission of South Africa; Board member of 
the International Issues Management Council based in the US; Member of IODSA; former 
Executive Director of Group Corporate Affairs at Standard Bank Group; former Vice President, 
Organizational Development & Communications at Council for Scientifi c & Industrial Research.

ZOLA FIHLANI
Zola Fihlani - He holds a B.Com, BCompt (Hons), CTA, H.Dip Tax, M.Comm (Tax) and is a CA. 
He is the founder and Managing Partner of EVI Capital Partners and a former member of 
the Global Loans team at Absa Capital, an investment bank affi liated with Barclays Capital. 
He has a total of 13 years banking experience and over 10 years investment banking 
experience. Formerly a senior member within the Leveraged and Acquisition Finance team at 
Barclays Capital.

ANDILE MAHLALUTYE
Andile Mahlalutye - He holds MA Financial Management (London); MBL (UNISA); 
Graduate Diploma in Company Direction (GIMT); BSc Quantity Surveying (UCT); Certifi cate 
in NGO Development and Management (Israel); A Project Management Professional 
(PMP) & Professional Quantity Surveyor (PrQS). 
He is a Non-executive Chairperson of Umgeni Water Board since 2009; MD Ubudlelwane Capital 
Investments since 2010; Mvula Trust CEO from 2007 to 2010.

SIBUSISO MAKHANYA
Sibusiso Makhanya - He holds a Diploma in Engineering and a B.Com, Diploma (Marketing 
Management)
He is the COO at Mhlathuze Water, the local water board. He was formerly Engineering Services 
Manager at Mhlathuze Water and before that in the Engineering Department at the uThungulu
District Municipality.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PART A
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DAMON MATHFIELD
Damon Mathfi eld - He holds B.Soc Sci (Town and Regional Planning), B.Soc Sci (Hons), M.Soc Sci. 
He is an Economic Planner (Chief Director) in the Economic Planning Division of the National 
Department of Economic Development. He was formally General Manager: Executive Support 
and Strategy Analysis at KwaZulu-Natal Department of Economic Development and Tourism; 
Director: Spatial Economic Policy and Research at The Department of Trade and Industry and 
Chief Planner: Monitoring and Evaluation at Department of Rural Development and Land Reform.

MATSHEDISO JOY NDLOVU
Joy Ndlovu - She holds Diplomas (HRM and Transportation), an MBA Graduate currently 
studying towards a Doctorate in Business Administration. 
She is the founder and Managing Director of Ndlovu & Co Holdings (Pty) Ltd with widespread 
expertise as a director on company boards across multiple industries in the private and public 
sectors including MINTEK, South African Dental Association (SADA) and The King Dinizulu 
Hospital Board. She is the Deputy Chair for the King Dinizulu Hospital, Deputy Vice President for 
the UKZN Convocation and Chairperson for the South African Dental Association HR Committee. 

ELPHAS MBATHA
Elphas Mbatha - He holds a BA degree and a Master’s Degree in Governance and Political 
Transformation. 
He is the current Mayor of the uMhlathuze Municipality. He has more than 15 years experience 
and has held various positions within the Local Government sector and currently serves as a 
Board member of Downstream Aluminium Centre for Technology, and is also a council member 
of the Umfolozi FET. He has been a director of the RBIDZ since 2008.

MBALI NDLOVU
Mbali Ndlovu - She holds LLB, LLM, Cert. (Local Government Management).
She is currently the Deputy Municipal Manager of the City of uMhlathuze.

KUMARAN NAIDOO
Kumaran Naidoo - He holds B.Com, Cert (Comp Aud).
He is the Group Chief Financial Offi cer of the Department of Trade and Industry. He has been 
a member of the Audit Committee of the RBIDZ from 2009 to date.

NOZIPHO SITHOLE
Nozipho Sithole - She holds a B.Com, LLB, MBA.
She is the General Manager, National Command Centre at Transnet Freight Rail. Her focus is 
the improvement of rail service planning and delivery for the benefi t of Transnet rail freight 
division’s customers. The National Command Centre is vital to Transnet’s Market Demand 
Strategy as it involves the integration of all internal and external value chain components that 
deliver a service be it operations, planning, resources, rail network or maintenance.

MOHLOMI NKOPANE - ACTING CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Mohlomi Nkopane - He holds a B.Com, MAP and MBL. 
He has immense experience in public sector fi nancial management as he has worked for 
various institutions in the Public Sector, including the South African Rail Commuter Corporation 
(SARCC), South African Revenue Services (SARS), Metrorail and Magalies Water. He has 
occupied senior positions in fi nance including that of Chief Financial Offi cer of Magalies Water. 
He is the Chairperson of uThungulu District Municipality Audit Committee.



6. STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

6.1. VISION 
To be the prime destination for quality investments

6.2. MISSION
To provide a conducive environment that attracts appropriate investment for 
sustainable economic development

6.3. VALUES

HONESTY A member of RBIDZ shall speak the truth and create trust in minds of
all stakeholders.

INTEGRITY We shall pursue ethical practices by being Open, Sincere and Consistency
of Actions.

RESPECT We shall embrace diversity by treating each other with Respect, Trust and 
Dignity at all times.

SUSTAINABILITY We shall pursue the development of the RBIDZ to meet the present needs 
without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs.

6.4. STRATEGIC OUTCOME ORIENTATED GOALS

•  To promote good governance and ensure legislative compliance.
•  To establish a world class IDZ infrastructure.
•  To establish a sustainable IDZ.
•  To attract fi xed investment in export oriented manufacturing and services industries. 

7. LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES
The RBIDZ is a Schedule 3D entity in terms of the PFMA. 
The IDZ Programme in South Africa was established in terms of a cabinet resolution of September 2002, and is 
currently regulated by, the Manufacturing Development Act (Act No. 187 of 1993) and in particular the specifi c 
Regulations made under that Act and contained in Regulation No: R1224 of 1 December 2002 (Government 
Gazette No: 21803), which was subsequently amended by Government Notice No R1065 of 27 October 2002 
(Government Gazette No. 29320).  

The RBIDZ was separately established by Government Notice No. 644 of 26 April 2002 (Government Gazette 23369) 
and its area was then amended by Government Notice No. 1045 of 4 August 2006 (Government Gazette 29094). 

The programme is essential to Government’s strategic initiative of policy measures to “…elicit a higher level of 
investments that contribute to the growth of the economy and creation of jobs”.

16 RICHARDS BAY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT ZONE

GENERAL INFORMATION ...continued
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THE PURPOSE OF PROCLAIMING THE RBIDZ WAS TO:

• facilitate the creation of an industrial complex having strategic economic advantage;

• provide the location for the establishment of strategic investments;

• enable the exploitation of resource-intensive industries;

• take advantage of existing industrial capacity, promote integration with local industry and increase
  value-added production;

• create employment and other economic and social benefi ts in the region in which it is located;

• be consistent with any applicable national policies & laws, as determined by appropriate environmental,
  economic and technical analyses;

• develop and operate an IDZ in the area designated in the operator permit, including all infrastructure, utilities,
  buildings, warehouses, factory shells and other facilities and improvements necessary for its operation, which
  may incorporate a delimited CCA, designated in accordance with Section 21A of the Customs & Excise Act
  (Act No. 91 of 1964) and linked to the Port of Richards Bay;

• provide quality services infrastructure, including state-of-the-art ICT and transport infrastructure and business
  and utility services, which are appropriate to attract internationally competitive, export-orientated 
  manufacturing businesses;

• take ownership of the assets and affairs of the Zone and be responsible for on-going management and maintenance
  thereof in an effective and effi cient manner, which includes ensuring its sustainability and ensuring that both the Zone
  and investors therein are compliant with all laws;

• establish a one-stop-service-centre and provide commensurate HR capacity, expertise and suitable technologies
  for expedited servicing and assistance to the IDZ Enterprises in respect of registration, business permits and licenses,
  environmental permits, accessing incentives, customs clearance processes, tax matters and similar;

• make arrangements for and mobilise fi nancial, human, physical, and intellectual requisite resources for the
  development of the Zone;

• operate in a manner that recognises that the shareholder is prioritising development, socio-economic
  improvement and long term sustainability, rather than fi nancial profi t.

In respect of these laws, rules and regulations, the RBIDZ shall, in conjunction and collaboration with SARS: Customs 
and Excise Division, be responsible and facilitate compliance by IDZ Enterprises, with all IDZ specifi c legislation, 
rules and regulations regarding movement of goods, persons and vehicles into and out of the proclaimed areas, 
as well as with legislation, guidelines and standards; specifi cally pertaining to safety, health and environment.

In short therefore, the purpose of the RBIDZ is to develop an industrial estate in order to attract local and foreign 
investors who will create production capacity to benefi ciate South Africa’s raw materials prior to export and will 
thereby create employment and improve the skills base.  

It is thus an integral part of Government’s macro-economic policy to develop South Africa’s manufacturing 
sector by encouraging investment in the manufacturing industries, centred on benefi ciation of the country’s
natural resources.
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8. ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

GENERAL INFORMATION ...continued
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1. STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY FOR 
 PERFORMANCE INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
 31 MARCH 2013

As the Chief Executive Offi cer responsible for the preparation of the public entity’s performance information, 
in my opinion, the performance information fairly refl ects the actual achievements against planned objectives, 
indicators and targets as per the strategic and annual performance plan of the public entity for the fi nancial year 
ended 31 March 2013.

The RBIDZ performance information for the year ended 31 March 2013 have been examined by the external 
auditors and their report is presented on page 58. 

The performance information of the entity set out on page 25 to page 34 were approved by the board.

M Nkopane
Acting Chief Executive Offi cer

2. OVERVIEW OF PUBLIC ENTITY’S PERFORMANCE

2.1 SERVICE DELIVERY ENVIRONMENT

INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT
Bulk earthworks covering an area of 22,5 hectares was completed in Phase 1A on the 16th of April 2012.  Bulk 
earthworks required for the remainder of Phase 1A, covering an area of 46 hectares, commenced on the 20th of 
September 2012 with an expected completion date of September 2014.

The installation of civil engineering services to Stage 1 of Phase 1A, which includes the internal road, sewer, storm 
water and water networks, commenced on the 18th of February 2013 and is expected to be completed by the 
end of February 2014.

The RBIDZ created 358 construction jobs during the 2012/13 fi nancial year during the implementation of these 
infrastructure projects.

INVESTOR ATTRACTION
The 2009 recessionary period saw global output contract by 0.6 %, this was characterised by immense fi nancial 
crisis and dire loss of business confi dence, which constituted the epicentre of the crisis, registering the most 
severe declines. The subsequent normalisation of trade fl ows; and inventory restocking saw global economic 
growth recovering stoutly to 5.1 % in 2010, and only to slack down to 3 % in 2012. The tussle to shake off the 

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION 

PART B
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long-term remnants of the global fi nancial crisis continues to impact the lethargic trade and lukewarm foreign 
direct investment (M. Mabuyakhulu, MTP: Policy Budget Speech 2013/14, www.kznded.gov.za). 

The RBIDZ fi nds itself shrouded in this crisis in its quest to attract investors to the zone. In the reporting 
year, the RBIDZ received investments enquiries to the tune of R3.6 billion with potential of creating
about 3000 jobs. One investor is currently undertaking EIA for the project whilst the others are at early stages of 
feasibility studies. 

In the pursuit of being visible, the company endeavours to participate in outward missions and do exhibitions in 
international and national strategic conferences for the purpose of brand positioning as well as investor attraction. 

Other advertising platforms are also utilised for marketing of our services, including airports TV, various publications, 
and we have currently partnered with other entities in a CNBC Africa project.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The new Board of Directors was appointed in July 2012 and thereafter established all the Board sub-committees 
as required by the Companies Act. The AGM for 2010/11 was held in October 2012. The RBIDZ was listed in  
schedule 3D of the PFMA, effective 1 April 2012.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
The entity is 100% owned by Kwa-Zulu Natal Province through Department of Economic Development and 
Tourism. The entity is funded by both the Department of Economic Development and Tourism and nationally by the 
Department of Trade and Industry. For the 2012/13 fi nancial year R104 million was allocated to the public entity 
in terms of the Medium Term Expenditure Framework (MTEF), being R62 million from the DEDT and R42 million 
from the dti. An additional R140 million was appropriated to the entity during the budget review process by the 
dti. The R140 million funds were transferred during the February and March 2013 and would be spent over two 
fi nancial years starting from the new fi nancial year.

2.2 ORGANISATIONAL ENVIRONMENT 
For the year under review the RBIDZ has been engrossed on fi nalising the development of infrastructure in Phase 1A, 
addressing governance arrangements through the appointment of the new Board and the establishment of Board
sub-Committees, whilst concurrently undertaking the development of a 50 year Master Plan. This Annual Report is published 
at a time of critical challenges for South Africa due to pressures on the national fi scus, reduced spending by private sector 
and the on-going devastating effects of the global economic recession, all this makes the work of this entity an even
greater challenge.

One of the major challenges has been the staff turnover especially 2 key personnel in the Business Development 
Unit and 1 key personnel in Infrastructure Planning and Development, as a mitigating action 2 acting executive 
managers were appointed. The vacant positions have been advertised. 

2.3 KEY POLICY DEVELOPMENTS AND LEGISLATIVE CHANGES
The key policy and legislative developments during the year were the tabling in Parliament of the Special Economic 
Zones Bill and the announcement by the Honourable Minister of Finance of proposed incentives for Special 
Economic Zones. 

The Special Economic Zones Bill deems the RBIDZ to be a special economic zone and brings with it both opportunities 
and threats to which the RBIDZ will have to respond. From a threat point of view the Bill allows more zones in 
more places, meaning that the RBIDZ will need to compete more keenly with other zones for both funding and 
investors. The Bill also brings the opportunity to use the expertise built up in the RBIDZ to provide zone management 
services to newly established zones in other areas. 

A key opportunity for the RBIDZ is the announcement of proposed tax incentives for zone investors, including a 
reduced corporate income tax rate of 15% and employment incentives. In the past, apart from a single incentive 
regarding VAT timing, there were no incentives available in zones which were not available outside of zones. The 
proposed incentive will have a major effect on incentivising investors to locate in zones and is gladly welcomed. 
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2.4 STRATEGIC OUTCOME ORIENTED GOALS

• To promote good governance and ensure legislative compliance.
• To establish a world class IDZ infrastructure.
• To establish a sustainable IDZ.
• To attract fi xed investment in export oriented manufacturing and service industries. 

3. PERFORMANCE INFORMATION BY PROGRAMME

PROGRAMME 1:  ADMINISTRATION

PROGRAMME PURPOSE: To provide strategic support to the company and to maintain good corporate governance 
systems that guide the implementation of organisational strategy in line with mission espoused in this plan. 
Administration is made up of the following sub-programmes; Governance & Strategy, Finance & Supply Chain 
Management and Corporate Services. 

OFFICE OF THE CEO
The purpose of the sub-programme is to set up corporate governance systems and to monitor the implementation 
of organisational strategy in line with the overall strategic goal of governance and legislative compliance. It acts 
as a link between management and the Board as well as external stakeholders and is the overall guardian of 
the brand.

Sub-programme Functions Performed

Corporate Governance Corporate governance oversight, corporate strategy and APP implementation.

Legal Services
Ensuring legislative compliance, drafting and vetting of legal documents and
litigation management.

Risk Management Facilitating risk assessments, monitoring implementation of mitigating actions.

Monitoring and Evaluation
Ensuring that the company has an updated strategy and APP. Monitoring the 
implementation of the corporate strategy and the APP.  Custodian of
performance information.

CORPORATE SERVICES
This sub-programme is responsible for the provision and management of human capital and integrated ICT systems.

Sub-programme Functions Performed

Human Resources Management of human capital and staff development.

ICT Provision and maintenance of effi cient ICT systems.

Corporate Social Investment 
To fulfi l the company’s social responsibility through projects that support youth 
empowerment as well as collaborating with other organs of state.

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION ...continued

PART B



23ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013

FINANCE 
This sub-programme is responsible for establishing and maintaining appropriate fi nancial and supply chain 
management systems and procedures as well as ensuring compliance to applicable legislations, guidelines and 
reporting mandates. 

Sub-programme Functions Performed

Financial Management 

Financial reporting 

Budget Management

Financial Assets Management

Annual Financial Statements

Supply Chain Management

Demand Management

Procurements of goods and services

Disposal Management

Inventory Management

Facilities Management Offi ce environment support

Customs Control Area

Implement processes towards establishment of the CCA
Estate and Security management
Compliance with SARS requirements 
Clearing of goods and services

PROGRAMME 2:  INFRASTRUCTURE PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
PROGRAMME PURPOSE: To develop and maintain world class infrastructure for RBIDZ land through an 
integrated planning, design and management process.

Sub-programme Functions Performed

Planning and Development Approvals
Obtaining planning and design approvals for the 
development of RBIDZ identifi ed land. 

Infrastructure Implementation Provision of engineering infrastructure on RBIDZ land.

Maintenance of RBIDZ infrastructure
Implementation of maintenance programmes  for all 
RBIDZ installed infrastructure.
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PROGRAMME 3:  BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT AND MARKETING 
PROGRAMME PURPOSE: The purpose of the programme is to formulate strategies and measures aimed at 
attracting fi xed investment for the production of exports and import substitutes into the Zone. The principal 
intention of the Programme is to assist the RBIDZ fulfi l its mandate of attracting meaningful investment that 
creates jobs and enhance productive capacity. 

Sub-programme Functions Performed

Investment Promotions

Investment targeting (Sector research)

Priority sector promotion (through identifying and securing appropriate 
advertising platforms)

Investment facilitation (one-stop shop and pre-investor support)

Leads generation through direct and indirect marketing and utilising 
intelligence databases

Business retention and after-care development strategy and implementation

Branding and Communication

Branding and re-positioning strategy development and implementation

Advertising plan development and implementation

On-going communication and events management

Website optimisation and upgrading

Media watch and web-up-loading   

PROGRAMME 4:  SAFETY HEALTH ENVIRONMENT AND QUALITY
THE PROGRAMME PURPOSE: To ensure that RBIDZ operate responsibly and commits to long term sustainability 
through implementation of international best practices with regards to quality management, health and safety, 
environmental management.

Sub-programme Functions Performed

Health and Safety

Ensure health and safety of employees and contractors

Ensure compliance to health and safety act and regulations

Implement projects and initiatives that promote health and safety

Environment

Ensure compliance to environmental authorisations and permits

Facilitate environmental authorisations for RBIDZ and investor projects

Initiate activities that promote sustainable development

Quality Management

Implement quality management principles towards certifi cation for ISO 9001 
and OHSAS 18001 

Ensure continual improvement

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION ...continued
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4. STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES, PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
 PLANNED TARGETS AND ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENTS

Strategic 
Objectives

Key Performance 
Area

Annual Target Achievements Explanation

To promote 
good 
governance 
and ensure 
legislative 
compliance

All governance 
meetings are 
organised

Minimum of 40 
meetings

48 governance 
meetings

Monitoring of 
performance 
information is 
undertaken

4 reports 4 reports

Organisational 
strategy reviewed 
and draft APP 
produced and 
submitted to DEDT 
end January

1 organisational 
strategy and risk 
register reviewed

Final draft Strategy 
document produced 
and submitted to 
DEDT on the 28th 
February 2013

A 50 year master 
plan incorporating a 
10 year business plan 
produced

Master Plan 
Key quarterly 
milestones 
achieved

Product 1-4 have 
been fi nalised

Products 5 & 6 were
scope outside 2012/13 
fi nancial year

Performance 
agreements 
prepared and 
signed. Performance 
assessments 
undertaken

30 performance 
agreements

24 performance 
agreements 

1 approved position in 
the organogram was not 
fi lled due to the Provincial 
moratorium. There were 
2 resignations, 1 dismissal 
and 1 contract that expired, 
CEO whose performance 
agreement was not signed. 
The manager civils refused 
to sign his performance 
agreement

Corporate Social 
Responsibility 
executed

3 initiatives 7 initiatives were 
implemented

Human Resource 
Development 
programme 
established

Training Plan 
developed

The training plan 
was not developed

The plan needs to be 
aligned to skills audit

ICT Systems in place 70% systems in 
place

70% systems in 
place
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Strategic 
Objectives

Key Performance 
Area

Annual Target Achievements Explanation

To promote 
good 
governance 
and ensure 
legislative 
compliance

Facilitate 
environmental 
authorisations

2 2 environmental 
authorisations were 
facilitated

Develop 
environmental 
management 
plans/ Programmes

2 3 environmental 
management plans 
developed

Conduct periodic 
monitoring of 
environmental 
indicators

8 8 environmental 
monitoring activities 
undertaken

Conduct SHE 
audits on 
construction sites

12 10 SHE audits 
conducted

The constraints on wetland 
areas shifted the focus so as 
to address wetland sensitivity

Health and 
Safety Wellness 
Programme

4 4 wellness sessions 
conducted

SHEQ sustainability 
projects

2 2 projects 
implemented

Implement SHEQ 
Management 
System (DMS, 
Non-conformance 
Management and 
Legal Register)

Implement SHEQ 
Management 
System (DMS, 
Nonconformance 
Management 
and Legal 
Register)

98% achievement Legal Register look and feel 
still to be fi nalised.
Also the inclusion of other 
legislations relevant to 
the organisation is still 
outstanding

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION ...continued
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Strategic 
Objectives

Key Performance 
Area

Annual 
Target

Achievements Explanation

To establish a 
world class IDZ 
Infrastructure

Feasibility studies, 
specialist studies 
and obtain 
Development 
Approvals for all 
RBIDZ land

All specialist 
studies 
required have 
been fi nalised

50% achievement. 
Studies have been 
commissioned but 
not completed as yet

Delays experienced in 
completion of procurement 
documentation by staff 
in the unit. Procurement 
documentation was issued 
in Feb 2013. Limited 
responses received on fi rst 
call for proposals. Second 
call for proposals had to be 
issued 5 March 2013

Additional IDZ land 
identifi ed

Feasibility 
studies 
conducted on 
prospective 
land

60% achievement. 
Feasibility studies 
have been conducted 
and land identifi ed 
for expansion

The Board has not yet 
approved the proposed 
land parcels because of the 
delays in consultations with 
various stakeholders

Security fence 
erected in all the 
RBIDZ land

Fencing 
project for 
Phase 1A 
wetlands

30% achievement. 
A temporary fence 
has been erected 
around the wetlands

 Project on hold subject 
to the fi nalisation of 
Wetland Management 
Strategy for Phase 1A. 
Wetland Management to 
be undertaken to comply 
with National Water Act 
requirements

Workable plans 
and designs with 
full cost estimates 
for the RBIDZ 
undeveloped land 
approved for the 
installation of 
Engineering Services

All plans 
and designs 
required for 
development 
are in place

100% achievement. 
All plans and 
designs required for 
development are
in place

Fully functional
in-house GIS 

100% 
functional GIS

GIS is 100% 
functional 

Maintenance 
Strategy,
Policies and Plans

Maintenance 
strategy in 
place

70% achievement.
Draft maintenance 
strategy has 
been completed. 
Implementation of 
maintenance strategy 
has commenced for 
the maintenance 
of the Phase 1A 
perimeter fence

Only the fencing 
maintenance was 
prioritised because 
the implementation of 
maintenance strategy 
for engineering will 
only commence on the 
completion of installation 
of engineering services in 
Phase 1A. There is nothing 
else to maintain at this 
stage except for the fence
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Strategic 
Objectives

Key 
Performance 

Area

Annual 
Target

Achievements Explanation

To establish a 
world class IDZ 
Infrastructure

For each 
infrastructure 
project monitor 
and manage 
the opportunity 
to generate 
employment

250 
construction 
jobs created

358 construction jobs 
were created

Continuous 
Statutory and 
Development 
Planning support 
to RBIDZ

Provide 
Statutory and 
Development 
planning 
support to 
all Phases of 
RBIDZ as and 
when required

100% achievement.
Planning and 
engineering support 
provided to the RBIDZ 
business units. Activities 
included attendance 
of investor meetings, 
production of layout 
and site plans, technical 
guidance to investors 
on town planning 
and engineering 
requirements, 
responding to investor 
queries and attendance 
of site inspections

PART B
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Strategic 
Objectives

Key Performance 
Area

Annual Target Achievements Explanation

To establish a 
world class IDZ 
Infrastructure

Effi cient Financial 
Management

12 monthly 
and 4 quarterly 
reports

16 reports

Compliance to 
SCM Framework

2 SCM 
Workshops

2 SCM workshops

Compliance to 
SCM Framework

No repeat audit 
fi ndings

1 SCM audit was 
conducted

A follow up was conducted 
to ensure that there were 
no repeat audit fi ndings

Improve RBIDZ BEE 
rating

All budgeted 
procurement 
to be from 
BEE suppliers 
at 25% per 
Quarter

66.5% budgeted 
procurement was 
from BEE suppliers

Suppliers in our data base 
do not have BEE certifi cates. 
The RBIDZ is continuously 
persuading suppliers to 
acquire
BEE certifi cates

Legislative 
Compliance 

6 VAT 201 
returns

6 VAT 201 returns 
submitted

Legislative 
Compliance 

12 EMP 201 
returns 

12 EMP 201 returns
submitted 

Legislative 
Compliance 

2 EMP 501 
returns 

2 EMP 501 returns
submitted 

Legislative 
Compliance 

2 Income Tax 
returns

2 Income Tax returns
submitted

Legislative 
Compliance 

Annual report Annual report
submitted

Legislative 
Compliance 

Financial 
statements to 
the Auditor 
General 
for audit 
submitted

Financial statements 
to the Auditor 
General for audit 
submitted

Legislative 
Compliance

Bank accounts 
to National 
Treasury 
submitted

Bank accounts to
National Treasury 
submitted
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Strategic 
Objectives

Key Performance 
Area

Annual Target Achievements Explanation

To attract fi xed 
investment in 
export oriented 
manufacturing 
and service 
industries

Investment 
promotion Projects 
undertaken

Number of MOUs;
Investor Selection 
Policy;

Concept document- 
RBIDZ Approach 
to Investment 
Attraction;

Number of 
Packaged Project 
Opportunities;

Creation of a 
database of 
enquiries;

Development and 
Implementation 
of Advertising 
Strategy;

Create database 
of industry 
associations;

Targeted investment 
promotion events/
missions;

Direct Marketing 
Campaigns;

Development of a 
Fees/Tariff booklet

90% achievement.
9 Projects 
undertaken

1 project outstanding
Development of a Fees/
Tariff booklet

This has been integrated 
into the Master Plan 
project as part of 
Estate Management

Investment 
targeting Projects 
undertaken

Sector studies 
(importable);
Sector studies 
(exportable);

Investment 
Marketing Strategy;
Number of Concept 
documents

80% achievement.
5 Projects 
undertaken

The Marketing Strategy 
is not yet fi nalised due to 
this having to be aligned 
to the Master Plan

PART B
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Strategic 
Objectives

Key Performance 
Area

Annual Target Achievements Explanation

To attract fi xed 
investment in 
export oriented 
manufacturing 
and service 
industries

Investment 
facilitation Projects 
carried out

2 X number 
of investment 
facilitation activities

100% 
achievement

Investor aftercare 
Projects 
implemented

Aftercare service 
will be rendered 
to 1 investor (Tata 
Steel)

No aftercare 
initiative 
implemented

Aftercare initiative was not 
implemented at Tata steel 
due to plant operational 
challenges

Export 
development 
Projects 
implemented

IDZ industry sector 
analysis;

Gather and Provide 
market intelligence;
Primary market 
research;

Identify 
manufacturing 
and agricultural 
products with 
export potential;

60% achievement.
3 Projects 
undertaken

2 projects outstanding
Primary market research;
Identify manufacturing 
and agricultural products 
with export potential; 
Vacancies in the unit led 
to capacity constraints
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Strategic 
Objectives

Key Performance 
Area

Annual Target Achievements Explanation

To attract fi xed 
investment in 
export oriented 
manufacturing 
and service 
industries

Branding projects 
effected

Develop and 
implement 
branding strategy 
including 
re-branding and 
co-branding 
activities;

Increase RBIDZ 
visibility through 
Signage and Offi ce 
branding activities;

Develop and 
Implement 
Corporate Identity 
Manual;

Conduct other 
branding projects 
on an ad hoc basis;

Organising and/or 
attending corporate 
events (stakeholder 
visits, launches, 
fairs, exhibitions, 
expo’s, seminars 
and conferences)

100% 
achievement

All branding 
projects 
undertaken

PART B
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Strategic 
Objectives

Key Performance 
Area

Annual Target Achievements Explanation

To attract fi xed 
investment in 
export oriented 
manufacturing 
and service 
industries

Procurement 
of promotional 
material executed 

Procurement of 
marketing and 
promotional 
material/gifts;

Develop and 
update of corporate 
video;

Develop and 
bring up to date 
RBIDZ corporate 
presentation;

Procure and 
facilitate 
development of 
e-communication 
booklets

Procurement of 
advertising space 
from various 
magazines and 
publication. 
Subscriptions 
renewals, Develop/
write projects close 
out reports

100% 
achievement 

4 Projects 
undertaken

Advertising Projects 
effected

Develop and 
implement 
Advertising strategy 
and projects;

Conducting 
research of most 
suitable media 
platforms;

Initiate and 
implement 
advertising and co-
advertising projects;
Highlighting 
awareness of 
RBIDZ by sourcing 
indoor and 
outdoor advertising 
platforms;

Creatively write 
and edit content 
for publication in 
various magazines 
and publications

100% 
achievement
5 Adverts 
undertaken
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Strategic 
Objectives

Key Performance 
Area

Annual Target Achievements Explanation

To attract fi xed 
investment in 
export oriented 
manufacturing 
and service 
industries

Corporate 
Communications 
Projects achieved

Develop, 
implement and 
periodically update 
communications 
strategy and 
procedure;

Media monitoring;
Creatively write 
press releases 
content;

Annual report 
produced.

100% achievement.
4 Projects 
undertaken

Produced Annual 
report

Content 
management 
accomplished

Resizing and 
uploading of 
images;

Adding, updating 
and removal of web 
content or pages;

Coordinate with 
content creators/
authors for new 
content if required;

Ensure a consistent 
look and feel across 
the Website by 
promoting uniform 
fonts, icons, 
formatting, images, 
and layout;

Find, diagnose 
and fi x web 
site problems 
and errors: 
typographical errors, 
and formatting 
inconsistencies;

Keep track of when 
renewals are due, 
order new domain 
names and liaise 
with customer
and vendor(s)
for renewals

75% achievement.
3 Projects 
undertaken

1 project was not 
implemented in respect 
of coordinating with 
content creators/authors 
for new content

PART B
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5. CAPITAL INVESTMENT, MAINTENANCE AND ASSET
MANAGEMENT PLAN
Good progress has been made with the implementation of capital projects planned for the 2012/13 fi nancial year. 
Construction commenced on 20 September 2012 for the completion of the Bulk Earthworks in RBIDZ Phase 1A 
Stage 2 which was projected to be a 24 month contract. The project has progressed very well with 24% project 
achievement at the end of March 2013 and expected completion date of 20 September 2014.

Construction has also commenced with the installation of Civil Engineering Services to RBIDZ Phase 1A Stage 1 
on 18 February 2013. The contract comprises of the construction of the internal road, sewer, storm water and 
water networks as well as bulk water and sewer connections to the Municipal networks. The contract period for 
the project is expected to be 12 months with 7% project progress recorded at the end of March 2013 which was 
3 weeks ahead of schedule. The project is expected to be completed on the 18th of February 2014.

A high quality PVC coated fence was erected along the 4,665 kilometer periphery of RBIDZ Phase 1A which was 
completed on the 30th of June 2012. 

All the capital projects that were planned to commence in the 2012/13 fi nancial year commenced with no negative 
variances on planned projects.

A comprehensive maintenance strategy has been developed by the RBIDZ for the maintenance of all capital 
infrastructures. The implementation of the strategy has commenced with a maintenance programme that is 
undertaken to maintain the RBIDZ security fence. The maintenance strategy will be rolled out further with the 
completion of the other capital projects and will be linked to the MTEF budgeting process. No maintenance 
backlogs currently exist as new capital infrastructure is under construction.

5.1 ASSET REGISTER
The Company showed its commitment and endeavours to ensure completeness and theft prevention of its fi xed 
assets through continued timeous update of the fi xed asset register and a closely monitored control environment.

PART B
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CAPEX PROJECTS

Infrastructure 
Projects

2011/12 2012/13

Budget Actual (over)/under
Expenditure

Budget Actual (over)/under
Expenditure

Annotation

R R R R R R

Fencing Phase 1  2 976 379  2 447 013  529 366  529 366  261 040  268 326  Note 1 

Bulk Earthworks Phase 
1A - Stage 1

34 113 385 31 489 558  2 623 826  2 623 826  359 763  2 264 063  Note 2 

Bulk Earthworks Phase 
1A - Stage 2

 -    -    -    35 000 000  25 813 860  9 186 140  Note 3 

Installation of Civil 
Engineering Services to 
Stage 1 of Phase 1A

 -    -    -    22 800 000  1 764 752 21 035 248  Note 4 

Installation of 
Bulk Electrical Link 
Services to Phase 1A 
(Including Engineering 
Contributions)

 -    -    -    37 000 000  36 830 392  169 608  Note 5 

Bulk Civil Engineering 
Link Services to Phase 1A 
(Including Engineering 
Contributions)

 -    -    -    38 000 000  37 847 576  152 424  Note 6 

Installation of Internal 
Electrical Engineering 
Services to Stage 1 of 
Phase 1A (Including 
Professional Fees)

 -    -    -    11 400 000  310 633  11 089 367  Note 7 

37 089 764 33 936 572  3 153 192 147 353 192 103 188 016  23 129 928 

Annotation

Note 1
Multi year project which commenced on 28 February 2011 and was completed on 
30 June 2012, saving was redirected to other capex projects.

Note 2
Multi year project which commenced on 19 May 2011 and was completed on 16 May 2012, 
saving was redirected to other Capex projects.

Note 3
Multi year project which commenced on 20 Sept 2012 and is expected to be fi nished on 
20 Sept 2014

Note 4
Multi year project which only commenced on 18 February 2013 and is expected to be 
fi nished on 28 February 2014

Note 5 Actual amount paid to the City of uMhlathuze for bulk engineering contributions 

Note 6 Actual amount paid to the City of uMhlathuze for bulk engineering contributions 

Note 7
Multi year project with design that commenced in October 2012 and installation of services 
to commence in October 2013 for period of 12 months.
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01. INTRODUCTION
The RBIDZ has established a solid corporate governance framework through a Shareholder Compact with the 
Executive Authority, a Board and sub-committee Charters. The executive management is also governed by a 
charter. The reporting protocols are well structured throughout the organisation. 

02. EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY
The entity reports against the set targets in the Annual Performance Plan on a quarterly basis to the Department 
of Economic Development and Tourism. Written reports are submitted 15 days after the end of the quarter and 
a meeting to discuss the reports is organised by the department. All 4 reports were submitted timeously to DEDT 
and the CEO attended all meetings to discuss progress against set targets.

03. THE ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY / BOARD 
The Board has an independent role with accountability to the shareholders and the Company and is responsible 
as the primary oversight body of the Company. The Board appreciates that strategy, risk, performance and 
sustainability are inseparable and to give effect to this by contributing to and approving the strategy, satisfying 
itself that the strategy and business plans do not give rise to risks that have not been thoroughly assessed
by management, identifying key performance and risk areas and ensuring that the strategy will result in
sustainable outcomes.

0THE ROLE OF THE BOARD 
The Board members have the specifi c responsibilities set out in the PFMA, the Companies Act and the King III 
Report on Corporate Governance, including the duty of utmost care to ensure reasonable protection of the assets 
and records of the Company; To act with fi delity, honesty, integrity and in the best interests of the Company in 
managing the fi nancial affairs of the Company; To, on request, disclose to the executive authority responsible 
for the Company or the Legislature to which the Company is accountable, all material facts, including those 
reasonably discoverable, which in any way may infl uence the decisions or actions of the executive authority or 
legislature; To act as the focal point for, and custodian of, corporate governance by managing its relationship 
with management, the shareholders and other stakeholders of the Company along sound corporate governance 
principles; To ensure that the Company is and is seen to be a responsible corporate citizen by having regard to 
not only the fi nancial aspects of the business of the Company but also the impact that business operations have 
on the environment and the society within which it operates; To be responsible for the governance of risk; To be 
responsible for information technology governance; To ensure that the Company complies with applicable laws 
and considers adherence to non-binding rules and standards; To ensure the integrity of the Company’s Annual 
report and to appoint and evaluate the performance of the Chief Executive Offi cer.

The Board acts collectively and does not assume the functions of Management, which remain the responsibility 
of the executive directors, offi cers and other members of senior management.

GOVERNANCE

PART C
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BOARD CHARTER
The Board has adopted a Board Charter setting out its roles and responsibilities.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

Name Designation Date 
appointed

Date
resigned

Qualifi cations Area of
Expertise

Board
Directorships

(List the
entities)

Other 
Committees 
(e.g: Audit 
committee)

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

Ms PB Kunene Chairperson 1/7/2012 - BA, BA Hons 
(Economics), 
MSc 
(Development 
Economics)

Management,   
banking,
public sector 

SAN Parks 4

Mr MC Clark Deputy
Chairperson

1/7/2012 - BSc Soc, 
Postgraduate 
Diploma

Management, 
public sector, 
governance

Black Balance 
Projects (Pty) 
Ltd

Human 
Resources and 
Remuneration 
Committee, 
Audit and Risk 
Committee

3

Ms TN Eboka Member 1/7/2012 - BS (Applied
Mathematics), 
BS (Textile
Engineering), 
MBA, Senior 
Executive
Programme
(Harvard),  
Certifi cate 
in Change 
Management 
(Cornell)

Management,       
engineering

E-Squared 
Foundation,
AgriAID
SA Trust,
T.Eboka Trust

Infrastructure 
Committee

4

Mr ZL Fihlani Member 1/7/2012 - B.Com, BCompt 
(Hons), CTA, 
H.Diploma Tax, 
H.Diploma 
Int Tax Law, 
M.Comm (Tax), 
CA (SA)

Management,    
auditing, 
fi nance

Pelchem SOC 
LTD, Gauteng 
Partnership 
Fund, Ezi 
Capital
Partners LLC, 
Council for 
Medical 
Schemes,
South African 
Weather
Service

Audit and Risk 
Committee

4

Mr AA 
Mahlalutye

Member 1/7/2012 - BSc (QS), 
MBL, Diploma 
Company 
Direction, 
M(Fin Mgt), 
Certifi cate in
Development 
and
Management of 
NGO’s (Gallilee 
College)

Management, 
economic 
zones

Umgeni
Water

Social and 
Ethics
Committee

4

Mr AS 
Makhanya

Member 1/7/2012 - B.Com, Diploma 
(Engineering), 
H.Diploma 
(Engineering), 
Diploma
(Marketing Mgt)

Management, 
engineering, 
water and
effl uent 
services

Social and 
Ethics
Committee

4
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Name Designation Date      
appointed

Date 
resigned

Qualifi cations Area of 
Expertise

Board
Directorships 

(List the 
entities)

Other 
Committees 
(e.g: Audit 
committee)

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

Mr D 
Mathfi eld

Member 1/7/2012 - B.Soc Sci, M 
(Town and 
Regional 
Planning), B.Soc 
Sci (Hons), M.Soc 
Sci

Economic 
development

Infrastructure 
Committee

2

Mr EF Mbatha1 Member 23/6/2008 
and 
1/7/2012

- BA and a 
Master’s Degree 
(Governance 
and Political 
Transformation)

Management, 
local 
government

Board 
Member of 
Downstream 
Aluminium 
Centre for 
Technology

HR and 
Remuneration 
Committee, 
Social and 
Ethics 
Committee

6

Mr K Naidoo Member 1/7/2012 - B.Com, 
Certifi cate 
(Computer 
Auditing),

Finance, 
management

HR and 
Remuneration 
Committee

3

Ms MJ Ndlovu Member 1/7/2012 - MBA and 
Diplomas 
(Human 
Resources 
Management & 
Transportation)

Management Mintek,
Ndlovu & Co 
Holding
(Pty) Ltd,
SA Dental 
Association, 
King George 
Hospital

Audit and Risk 
Committee

3

Mrs MTB 
Ndlovu

Member 1/7/2012 - LLB, LLM, 
Certifi cate (Local 
Government 
Mgt)

Management, 
law, local 
government

HR and 
Remuneration 
Committee

4

Ms NG Sithole Member 1/7/2012 - B.Com, LLB, 
MBA

Management, 
logistics

Infrastructure 
Committee

3

Mr BV 
Khumalo1,2

Chairperson 13/2/2009. - BA (Education), 
BA (Hons) and 
M.Sc (Maritime 
and Transport 
Management)

Transport 
and logistics, 
management

2

Mr EL Khoza1 Member 14/2/2011 06/08/2012 Master’s Degree 
in Town and 
Regional 
Planning

Planning 2

Mr SC 
Mkhize1, 3

Member 28/3/2012 23/8/2012 Master’s Degree 
(Land and 
Agrarian 
Studies), National 
Diploma 
(Information 
Science), 
Certifi cates 
(Development 
Planning, 
Human 
Resources 
Management)

Development, 
Management

2

GOVERNANCE ...continued
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Name Designation Date 
appointed

Date 
resigned

Qualifi cations Area of 
Expertise

Board
Directorships 

(List the 
entities)

Other 
Committees 
(e.g: Audit 
committee)

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

Mr SEI 
Nxedlana1

CEO 01/04/2008 31/3/2013 MBA, Certifi cate 
(Public Financial 
Management), 
Executive 
Development 
Programme 
(Wits) and various 
Diplomas (Financial 
and Business 
Management)

Management, 
Finance

Board 
Member of 
the Umgeni 
Water Board

5

Mr M 
Nkopane

CFO 05/10/2012 - B.Com, MBL 
and Certifi cate 
(Management 
Advancement 
Programme)

Management, 
Finance

Member of 
uThungulu 
District 
Municipality 
Audit 
Commitee

2

1 – Directors commencing prior to 1/7/2012
2 – Chairperson until 1/7/2012
3 – Excludes meetings attended as observer

COMMITTEES

Committee No. of meetings held No. of members Name of members

Audit and Risk Committee 4 3 Ms L Mthembu1+, Mr K Naidoo1, 
Mr M Kunene1, Mr Z Fihlani+, 
Ms MJ Ndlovu, Mr MC Clark

Social and Ethics Committee 2 3 Mr E Mbatha+, Mr A Mahlalutye, 
Mr S Makhanya

HR and Remuneration 
Committee

4 3 Mr E Mbatha1+, Mr SEI Nxedlana1, 
Mr MC Clark+, Ms MTB Ndlovu, 
Mr K Naidoo

Infrastructure Committee 1 4 Mr T Eboka+, Mr D Mathfi eld,  
Ms N Sithole, Mr S Mkhize2 

+ Chairperson
1 Until 13 August 2013
2 Non-voting member
Members not marked with 1 appointed to Committee 13 August 2012
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REMUNERATION OF BOARD MEMBERS
The remuneration of directors is covered under Note 17 of the Annual Financial Statements determined by
the shareholder. 

4. RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk assessment is conducted annually at the same time when the strategy is reviewed and a new APP is produced. 
The risk management strategy includes a risk plan and a fraud prevention plan to assist in determining the skills 
required of managers and staff so as to improve controls and to manage risks. The strategy is clearly communicated 
to all employees and the entity’s risk register is integrated into the APP to ensure that the mitigating plans are 
implemented concurrently with the entity’s set targets as per the strategy.

The risk register outlines strategic risks as well as operational risks and a quarterly risk report is submitted to 
the Audit and Risk Committee, whilst a monthly risk report is discussed during monthly monitoring meetings.

Our mitigating strategies revolve around 4 principles, i.e. Avoidance, Reduction, Sharing and Retention. All risks 
that were identifi ed in 2012/13 fi nancial year were dealt with according to the 4 principles. There were no major 
and catastrophic risks that took place. 

5. INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Company has adopted an Internal Audit Charter setting out that the internal audit function is an independent 
appraisal function established within the Company to examine and evaluate the company’s processes as a service 
to the Company in the effective discharge of its responsibilities. Its objectives include promoting effective risk 
management and operational effi ciency at reasonable cost, in accordance with the standards for the Professional 
Practice of Internal Audit established by the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA).  

The internal audit function evaluates inter alia governance processes; assesses the effectiveness of risk management; 
analyses and evaluates business processes and controls; provides information on fraud, corruption, unethical 
behaviour and irregularities and reports to the Audit and Risk Committee.  

For the duration of the reporting period the Internal Audit Unit of the KwaZulu-Natal Treasury was appointed as 
Internal Auditor of the Company, a task that they outsourced. The Internal Auditors implemented the approved 
audit plan.  

The functions of the Audit and Risk Committee are set out in a Committee Charter which is based on the 
recommendations of the King III Report on Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of Directors. The key 
functions of the Committee are to assist the Board in fulfi lling its oversight functions in terms of the PFMA, 
including to assist the Chief Executive and Executive Management in carrying out their functions as prescribed 
in the Public Finance Management Act, 1999, Sections 38(1), 76 paragraph 4 (d) and 77, Treasury Regulations 
Section 3.1.8, Corporate Governance and Company’s Act of 2008, as amended; to evaluate the adequacy and 
effi ciency of the internal control systems, accounting practices, information systems and auditing processes; to 
give an opinion and introduce measures that may serve to enhance the credibility and objectivity of fi nancial 
statements and reports prepared with reference to the affairs of the Company; to facilitate, promote and maintain 
effective communication and work relations with the Board of directors, Management and the internal and 
external auditors; to monitor compliance with laws, code of business conduct and regulations; to publicly issue a 
statement to the shareholders confi rming the effectiveness of the internal fi nancial controls and provide a written 
assessment of Company’s system of internal control; to review an integrated annual report with special emphasis 
on the impact of the Company in the economic, environmental and social spheres; to ensure that the Company has 
implemented an effective policy and plan for risk management that will enhance the Company’s ability to achieve 
its strategic objectives; and to ensure that the disclosure regarding risk is comprehensive, timely and relevant. 

PART C
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The tabled below discloses relevant information on the audit committee members

Name Qualifi cations Internal or 
external

If internal, 
position in the 
public entity

Date 
appointed

End of 
Appointment

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

Mr Z Fihlani B.Com, B.Compt 
(Hons), CTA, 
H.Dip Tax and 
CA(SA)

External Non-executive 
director

13/08/2012 3

Mr MC Clark BSc Soc, Pg Dip External Non-executive 
director

13/08/2012 3

Ms MJ Ndlovu MBA graduate 
with degrees 
and diplomas in 
Human Resources 
Management and 
Transportation

External Non-executive 
director

13/08/2012 3

Ms LBR 
Mthembu1

Accounting 
Science (Honours) 

External External 13/05/2009 05/10/2012 1

Mr K Naidoo2 B.Com, Cert 
(Comp Aud)

External External 13/05/2009 05/10/2012 2

Mr M Kunene External External 13/05/2009 05/10/2012 2

1 – External Independant Chairperson
2 – Attended additional 3 meetings as observer

6. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
The Legal Advisor/Company Secretary is responsible for the Compliance Function. The Company has adopted a 
comprehensive Compliance Policy. Research is conducted on applicable laws and various open source databases 
are used to determine upcoming legislation as well as relevant judgments. 

Checklists are compiled on key legislation, which is prioritised based on a risk-based approach. 

Compliance issues are reported to the Board through the Audit and Risk Committee on a quarterly basis.

7. FRAUD AND CORRUPTION  
The RBIDZ has adopted a comprehensive Fraud Prevention Policy incorporating various elements of a Fraud 
Prevention Plan. This includes a response plan to allegations of fraud and corruption, probity investigations of 
prospective staff and even suppliers, creating an open and transparent culture, protection of whistle blowers, 
annual declarations of fi nancial interests as well as declarations at certain meetings, mandatory reporting of gifts 
and gratuities received by staff and encouragement of staff to report suspected fraud and corruption. 

After the end of the fi nancial period a whistleblowing hotline was instituted and the policy provides for the 
persons to whom fraud is to be reported. In order to facilitate this, the policy was revised shortly before the end 
of the reporting period to allow a choice of persons to whom fraud could be reported.  

Where fraud is reported the policy provides for the investigation of the matter by a person independent of the 
division in which the fraud is suspected. Where senior managers or directors are suspected of fraud, the policy 
provides for next level reporting.
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8. MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST
The RBIDZ SCM Policy makes provisions to curtail confl ict of interest which may arise both from internal parties or 
external parties. With regard to internal parties, specifi c provisions are addressed under;

• Transactions with company offi cials and staff;

• Code of conduct for supply chain offi cials and end-users;

• Declaration of interest; Gifts and gratuities and; combating abuse of supply chain system.

With regard to external parties; the acquisition process requires that potential service providers complete and sign 
a declaration of interest and be returned as an attachment with tender document. Any alleged misappropriate 
behaviour whether arising from internal or external parties is dealt with, in accordance with procedures and other 
policies in place. 

9. CODE OF CONDUCT 
The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct which is applicable to all directors and staff and is intended 
to guide the behaviour that the Company expects in its interaction with all internal and external stakeholders, 
with special emphasis on the interactions of internal stakeholders with each other and with the communities 
within which the Company operates. The Code of Conduct seeks to ensure that behaviour is guided by socially 
established principles of honesty, fairness, accountability, non-discrimination and respect for human dignity. 

The Policy requires staff members to report dishonest activities and provides for the investigation of all 
infringements of the Code, followed by the taking of appropriate remedial action, which may include disciplinary 
action, termination of relationships with a supplier or taking steps to prevent a reoccurrence.  

10. HEALTH SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES
SHEQ Business Unit is responsible for ensuring that operations and development of the zone is conducted in an 
environmentally friendly and within a safe and healthy working environment. To this end, contractors on site are 
required to identify and mitigate health, safety and environmental risks associated with their activities. During the 
reporting period, two construction activities in Phase1 A, namely bulk earthworks and installation of services, were 
monitored and audited. For this fi nancial year the RBIDZ achieved 132 342 injury free man hours. Besides internal 
auditing, the projects are frequently visited by Department of Environmental Affairs and Department of Labour 
to enforce compliance with legislations. Issues raised are managed through a non-conformance management 
system to ensure that corrective and preventative actions are taken. 

In Phase 1A in particular, greater care is taken that the construction activities do not impact negatively on wetlands 
and hydrological functioning of Ngodweni canal and Thulazihleka Pan. As such, Wetland Offset Management 
Plan and Construction Environmental Management Plan were developed and implemented to safe guard these 
natural assets.

RBIDZ acknowledge that good health is a gift that we got for free, and the only condition is that we need to 
maintain it. RBIDZ employees were encouraged to attend three wellness programmes conducted in the fi nancial 
year, including blood donor clinics, blood glucose screening, fl u vaccines, cholesterol testing, pre and post HIV 
voluntary testing and counselling.

11. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
During the reporting period the RBIDZ embarked on different Corporate Social Responsibility projects in 
environmental sustainability, community development as well as youth development through outreach 
programmes to the schools. The entity also collaborated with other state organs in social development initiatives. 
Contributions and support were made towards Education and Learning processes; Environmental Sustainability 
and Social up-liftment projects.

PART C
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12. COMPANY SECRETARY
The RBIDZ’s Legal Advisor functions as its Company Secretary, with functions which include: Being the central 
source of guidance and advice to Board and within company on matters of good governance and changes in 
legislation; responsibility for Board and Committee Charters; preparation of the annual work plan and meeting 
schedule; circulation of Board and Committee papers; induction, orientation and on-going training of directors; 
ensuring returns are provided to the Companies and Intellectual Property Commission; recording, approval and 
circulation of minutes and assisting with Board evaluations. 

CERTIFICATION BY COMPANY SECRETARY
I, the undersigned, KN Harvey, in my capacity as Company Secretary, certify that the Company has lodged with 
the Companies and Intellectual Property Commission all such returns as are required of the company in terms of 
the Companies Act, and that all such returns are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, correct and up 
to date.

KN Harvey
Company Secretary
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1. INTRODUCTION 
Human Resources is responsible for the recruitment and apportionment of personnel, in the reporting period the 
RBIDZ has 30 employees in total and 6 vacancies. Attracting talent in a labour pool that is limited is a challenge but 
there are various programs in place, of attracting and retaining skills. The RBIDZ has established a solid corporate 
governance framework in order to meet the needs of the business through retaining employees and fostering a 
higher performing work ethic. Employees are assessed bi-annually to ensure excellent performance.

POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
There are 16 Human Resources related policies that have been developed and are implemented. The 50 year 
Master Plan that is underway will inform the Human Resources on how the organisation needs to grow in the 
future as well as the skills that will be required.

2. HUMAN RESOURCE OVERSIGHT STATISTICS

PERSONNEL COST BY PROGRAMME

Programme Personnel
Expenditure

(R’000)

Personnel exp. as 
a % of total  exp.

(R’000)

No. of employees

Offi ce of the CEO R7 662 108 38.46% 6

Infrastructure Planning 
& Development

R2 015 804 10.12% 3

Business Development 
& Marketing

R1 830 434 9.19% 3

Safety, Health, 
Environment & Quality

R1 720 862 8.64% 2

Finance R4 042 020 20.29% 8

Corporate Services R2 650 415 13.30% 7

TOTAL R19 921 643 100% 29

Average per organization R686 953

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

PART D
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PERSONNEL COST BY SALARY BAND

Salary Band Personnel
Expenditure

(R’000)

% of personnel exp. 
to total personnel cost 

(R’000)

No. of employees

Top Management
(Bands D4 – E4)

R10 515 168 53% 7

Senior Management
(Bands D1-D3)

R7 205 525 36% 12

Skilled (Bands C1-C5) R1 337 355 7% 5

Semi-skilled
(Bands A1-B5)

R863 595 4% 5

TOTAL R19 921 643 100% 29

 

PERFORMANCE REWARDS

Salary Band Performance rewards Personnel Expenditure 

(R’000)

% of performance 
rewards to total 
personnel cost 

(R’000)

Top Management 
(Bands D4 – E4) 

R448 646 R10 515 168 4%

Senior Management 
(Bands D1-D3)

R619 261 R7 205 525 9%

Skilled (Bands C1-C5) R140 134 R1 337 355 10%

Semi-skilled 
(Bands A1-B5)

R64 836 R863 595 7%

TOTAL R1 272 877     R19 921 643
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TRAINING COSTS 

Programme Personnel 
Expenditure 

(R’000)

Training 
Expenditure

(R’000)

Training 
Expenditure as 

a % of 
Personnel Cost

No. of 
employees 

trained

Avg. training  
cost per 

employee

Offi ce of the CEO R7 662 108 R28 158 0.4% 3 R9 386

Infrastructure 
Planning and 
Development

R2 015 803 R18 632 0.9% 2 R9 316

Business Development 
& Marketing

R1 830 433 R13 564 0.7% 2 R6 782

Safety, Health, 
Environment & 
Quality

R1 720 861 R30 566 1.8% 1 R30 566

Finance R4 042 019 R155 728 3.9% 7 R22 247

Corporate Services R2 650 415 R47 405 1.8% 3 R15 801

TOTAL R294 053 18

EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES: BUSINESS UNITS

Programme 2011/2012 
No. of 

Employees

2011/2012 
Approved 

Posts

2012/2013
No. of 

Employees

2012/2013 
Vacancies

% of vacancies

Offi ce of the CEO 6 6 6 0 0%

Business Development 
& Marketing

3 4 1 3 8.3%

Infrastructure 
Planning and 
Development

3 5 2 3 8.3%

Safety Health 
Environment & 
Quality

2 3 2 1 2.8%

Corporate Services 6 8 7 1 2.8%

Finance 8 10 8 2 5.5%

TOTAL 28 36 26 10

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT ...continued
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Level 2011/2012 
No. of 

Employees

2011/2012 
Approved 

Posts

2012/2013
No. of 

Employees

2012/2013 
Vacancies

% of vacancies

Top Management 7 7 5 2 5.5%

Senior Management 12 15 11 4 11.1%

Skilled 7 12 8 4 11.1%

Semi-skilled 2 2 2 - -

TOTAL 28 36 26 10

EMPLOYMENT CHANGES

Level Employment at 
beginning of 

period

Appointments Terminations Employment 
at end of the 

period

Top Management 7 - 2 5

Senior Management 12 - 1 11

Skilled 7 1 - 8

Semi-skilled 2 - - 2

TOTAL 28 1 3 26

REASONS FOR STAFF LEAVING 

Reason Number % of total no. of staff leaving

Death - -

Resignation 02 7%

Dismissal 01 3%

Retirement - -

Ill health - -

Expiry of contract 01 3%

TOTAL 04 -

EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES: LEVEL
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LABOUR RELATIONS: MISCONDUCT AND DISCIPLINARY ACTION

Nature of disciplinary Action Number 

Verbal Warning -

Written Warning -

Final Written warning 01

Dismissal 01

TOTAL 02

EMPLOYMENT EQUITY STATUS: MALE

Levels Male

African Coloured Indian White

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top Management 4 - - - - - - -

Senior Management 5 - - - 1 - 3 -

Skilled 3 - - - - - - -

Semi-skilled - - - - - - - -

TOTAL 12 - - - 1 - 3 -

EMPLOYMENT EQUITY STATUS: FEMALE

Levels Female

African Coloured Indian White

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top Management 3 - - - - - - -

Senior Management 2 - - - 1 - - -

Skilled 1 - 1 - - - 2 -

Semi-skilled 2 - - - - - - -

TOTAL 8 - 1 - 1 - 2 -

PART D
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Levels Female Male

Current Target Current Target

Top Management 4 - 3 -

Senior Management 9 - 3 -

Skilled 3 - 4 -

Semi-skilled - - 2 -

TOTAL 16 - 12 -

EMPLOYMENT EQUITY STATUS: GENDER AND LEVEL
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NOTICE: These fi nancial statements for 2012/13  were prepared on 25 May 2013 and have been independently audited 

by SizweNtsalubaGobodo Inc in accordance with the provisions of the Public Audit Act 2006 as well as any applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act 2008. The Statements were prepared by Mohlomi Nkopane, the Chief Financial Offi cer 

of the Company.
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We are pleased to present our report for the fi nancial year ended 31 March 2013.

The Committee is an independent statutory committee and consists of three independent, non-executive directors 
appointed by the Shareholder. It meets at least twice per year, as per its terms of reference. Other persons such 
as directors, Management, the External Auditors and other assurance providers attend the meetings of the 
Committee by invitation.

The composition of the Committee and the attendance of members at meetings are set out elsewhere in this 
Annual Report.

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITY
The Committee’s role and responsibilities include statutory duties per the PFMA and the Companies Act, 2008 as 
well as responsibilities assigned to it by the Board and the King III Report on Corporate Governance. 

The Committee has adopted formal terms of reference that was approved by the Board, which was reviewed 
during the reporting period. The Committee has conducted its affairs in compliance with its terms of reference and 
has discharged its responsibilities contained therein. The Charter of the Committee requires that the effectiveness 
of the Committee and its individual members are assessed on an annual basis.

The Committee also fulfi ls an oversight role regarding the Company’s risk management function and is satisfi ed 
with the risk management process implemented and that risks are identifi ed timeously and adequately managed.
The Committee is satisfi ed that it complied with its legal, regulatory or other responsibilities.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR APPOINTMENT AND INDEPENDENCE
The Committee is satisfi ed that the External Auditor was independent of the Company, as required by the 
Companies Act, 2008. The Company has adopted a formal policy that governs the process whereby the External 
Auditor is considered for non-audit services.

The Committee, in consultation with Executive Management, agreed to the engagement letter, terms, audit plan 
and budgeted audit fees of the External Auditor for the 2012/13 fi nancial year.

The External Auditor has a standing invitation to all meetings of the Committee.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PERFORMANCE REPORT AND ACCOUNTING PRACTICES
The Audit Committee concurs and accepts the conclusions of the External Auditor on the annual fi nancial 
statements and performance information and is of the opinion that the audited annual fi nancial statements and 
performance report be accepted and read together with the report of the External Auditor.

INTERNAL AUDIT
The internal audit function reports to the Committee and is responsible for reviewing and providing assurance on 
the adequacy of the internal control environment across all of the Company’s operations.

The Internal Audit function is outsourced to the Internal Audit unit of the KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Treasury, which 
in turn engaged Thabani Zulu and Company to perform the Internal Audit function on its behalf. The reasons 
for outsourcing the function were cost-saving, in so far as the Company only has to pay for disbursements, and 
ensuring a motivated audit team, in as far as Provincial Treasury’s Internal Audit unit is likely to ensure that funds 
transferred to the Company are properly utilised.

The Committee is responsible for ensuring that the company’s internal audit function is independent and has the 
necessary resources, standing and authority within the Company to enable it to discharge its duties. Furthermore, 
the Committee oversees cooperation between the internal and external auditors, and serves as a link between 
the Board and these functions. 

The Committee considered and recommended the Internal Audit Charter for approval by the Board. The internal 
audit function’s annual audit plan was approved by the Committee. The chief audit executive has direct access to 
the audit committee, primarily through its Chairperson.

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE REPORT
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INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
Based on reports received from both the Internal auditors and the management report of the External Auditors, 
the Committee is satisfi ed that the Company has and maintains effective, effi cient and transparent systems of 
fi nancial and risk management and internal control.  

The Committee has also overseen the Company’s compliance with relevant legislation and is generally satisfi ed 
with its level of compliance.

OTHER DUTIES

The Committee fulfi ls an oversight role regarding the Company’s Annual Report and the reporting process. 
The Committee has, at its meeting recommended the Annual Report for approval by the board of directors.

GOING CONCERN
The Committee supports the Board’s statement on the going concern status of the Company, which is contained 
elsewhere in this Annual Report.

The Committee considered the Company’s sustainability information as disclosed in the Annual Report and is 
satisfi ed that the sustainability information is reliable and consistent with the fi nancial results.

EVALUATION OF THE EXPERTISE AND EXPERIENCE OF FINANCIAL OFFICER AND FINANCE FUNCTION 
The Committee has considered, and has satisfi ed itself of the appropriateness of the expertise and adequacy 
of resources of the fi nance function and experience of the senior members of management responsible for the 
fi nancial function.

Mr Zola Fihlani
Chairperson
19 July 2013
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The annual fi nancial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with South African 
Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and in the manner required by the South African 
Companies Act. They are based on appropriate accounting policies, which have been consistently applied and 
which are supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of annual fi nancial statements that fairly present the state of 
affairs and the results of the company. The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and 
reporting on these annual fi nancial statements, in conformity with International Standards on Auditing.

INTERNAL CONTROLS
The board of directors is responsible for the company’s systems of internal control. These systems are designed 
to provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the fi nancial statements 
and to safeguard and maintain accountability of its assets and to detect and minimise signifi cant fraud, potential 
liability, loss and material misstatement while complying with applicable laws and regulations. The controls 
concentrate on critical risk areas. These areas are identifi ed by operational management and are monitored by 
the directors. All controls relating to the critical risk areas are closely monitored and subject to internal audit. 
Nothing has come to the attention of the directors to indicate that a material breakdown in the controls within 
the company has occurred during the year.
         

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT
The company reports on its own performance against pre-determined objectives as contained in the Annual 
Performance Plan for 2012/13 fi nancial year and in accordance with the Public Finance Management Act 29 of 
1999 as amended. The performance report is tabled on quarterly basis to the following structures; Audit & Risk 
Management, the Accounting Authority (RBIDZ Board) and the Executive Authority (Department of Economic 
Development & Tourism). The performance report is contained in Part B, of the report.     
           

BOARD REMUNERATION
The remuneration of directors and senior managers is set out in note 17 to the Annual Financial Statements.

The fi nancial statements set out on pages 60 to 80, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were 
approved by the board of directors and signed on its behalf by:       
  
           
         
         
               

Ms Bongi Kunene 
Chairperson
29 July 2013

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY BY THE DIRECTORS
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their report on the activities of the company for the year ended 
31 March  2013.       
       

NATURE OF BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS
Richards Bay Industrial Development Zone Company SOC Ltd was formed to undertake the development of 
industrial land in the Richards Bay area.       
       

FINANCIAL RESULTS
The results for the year are refl ected in the statement of comprehensive income set out on page 61. In summary 
the company had an operating loss of R7,897,565  for the fi nancial year, which after tax and interest resulted in a 
surplus of R764,540       
       

SHARE CAPITAL
Richards Bay Industrial Development Zone Company SOC Ltd has 1000 authorised and issued share capital. 
The share capital is as follows:       
1000 Shares: Province of Kwazulu Natal represented by its Department of Economic Development and Tourism.

GOING CONCERN
On the basis of the annual fi nancial statements for 2012/13 fi nancial period and information regarding the 
forthcoming fi nancial year, the directors have every reason to believe that the Company remains a going concern. 
       

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
No subsequent event could be identifi ed from the end of the fi nancial period.

INFORMATION DISCLOSED IN TERMS OF SECTION 55(2)(b) OF THE PFMA
Particulars of irregular expenditure incurred by the company in respect of the year ended 31 March 2013 are 
disclosed in Note 19 of the annual fi nancial statements.      
 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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Notes 2013 2012

R R

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 16 905 31 168 
Deposit 4  201 116  201 116 

Current assets 454 880 441 343 005 088 
Accounts receivable 5  59 058 769  58 745 580 
Cash and cash equivalents 6 394 946 567  282 685 243 
Deferred taxation 7  875 105  933 081 
South African Revenue Service - VAT  -    641 183 

Total assets 455 098 462 343 237 372 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Capital and reserves 151 965 540  151 201 000 
Share capital 8 1 000 1 000 
Share premium 8.1 151 200 000 151 200 000 
Accumulated surplus or (loss)  764 540  -   

Current liabilities 303 132 923 192 036 372 
Deferred income 9 279 946 266 183 675 440 
Accounts payable 10 12 187 309 8 360 932
South African Revenue Service - VAT 11  10 999 348  -   

Total equity and liabilities 455 098 462 343 237 372 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
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Notes 2013 2012

R R

Grants applied 12 31 079 665  26 159 523 
Other income  88 721  197 193 
Operating expenses (39 065 951)  (30 083 786)
Loss from operations 13  (7 897 565)  (3 727 070)
Investment income 16  7 897 565  6 664 621 
Surplus before taxation  -    2 937 551 
Taxation 14  764 540  (7 141)
Surplus/ (Loss) for the year  764 540  2 930 410 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013
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Notes Share 
capital

Share 
premium

Accumulated
surplus / (loss) Total

R R R R

Opening as at 1 April 2011  1 000 151 200 000  (2 930 410)  148 270 590 
Surplus/ (loss) for the period 13  -    -    2 930 410  2 930 410 
Closing as at 31 March 2012  1 000  151 200 000  -    151 201 000 
Surplus/ (loss) for the period 13  -    -    764 540  764 540 
Closing as at 31 March 2013  1 000  151 200 000  764 540  151 965 540 
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Notes 2013 2012

R R

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customers  46 394 346  26 356 716 
Cash paid to suppliers and employees (39 065 951) (27 295 832)
Cash (utilised) / generated in operations 15.1 7 328 395 (939 116)

Taxation 14  764 540  (7 141)

Finance income  7 897 565  6 664 621 
Net cash fl ows from operating activities 15 990 499 5 718 363 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  (91 380 406)  (30 956 133)
Additions to Property, plant and equipment  (91 380 406)  (30 956 133)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 187 651 232 84 354 082 
Grant received  218 730 897  110 513 605 
Grant applied  (31 079 665)  (26 159 523)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  112 261 324  59 116 312 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  282 685 243  223 568 931 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  394 946 567  282 685 243 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
The annual fi nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the South African Statements of Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practice.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
The fi nancial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis utilising the historical cost concept except 
for fi nancial instruments at fair value through profi t or loss, which are measured at fair value.

USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
The preparation of fi nancial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of asset, liabilities, income and expenses. 
These also concern the future and will thus affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 
fi nancial year. The resulting accounting estimates will, by defi nition, seldom equal the related actual results.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements 
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods’ revisions affect both current and 
future periods.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
The estimates and assumptions that have a signifi cant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amount of assets and liabilities within the next fi nancial year relate to credit impairment losses on loans and 
receivables, as well as impairment losses on investment property. During the period under review, there were no 
other areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are 
signifi cant to the fi nancial statements.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Where necessary comparative fi gures have been adjusted to conform with changes in presentation in the 
current year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Except as described otherwise, the accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods 
presented in these fi nancial statements.

1.2 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible assets, other than goodwill (refer to basis of consolidation policy above), are recognised if it is probable 
that future economic benefi ts will fl ow to the entity from the intangible assets and the costs of the intangible 
assets can be reliably measured.

PART E
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Intangible assets comprise separately identifi able intangible items arising from business combinations, computer 
software licenses and other intangible assets. Intangible assets are recognised at cost. The cost of an intangible 
asset acquired in a business combination is its fair value at the date of acquisition. Intangible assets with a defi nite 
useful life are amortised using the straight-line method over their useful economic life, generally not exceeding 
20 years. Intangible assets with an indefi nite life are not amortised. At each date of the consolidated statement 
of fi nancial position, intangible assets are reviewed for indications of impairment or changes in estimated future 
economic benefi ts. If such indications exist, the intangible assets are analysed to assess whether their carrying 
amount is fully recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable 
amount.

Intangible assets with an indefi nite useful life are tested annually for impairment and whenever there is an 
indication that the asset may be impaired.

Computer software’s and licences
Acquired computer software and licenses are capitalised as assets on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire 
and bring the specifi c software into use. These assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated 
economic life.  Capitalised computer software is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment 
losses. Computer software is tested annually for impairment or changes in estimated future benefi ts.

System development costs
Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense and when 
incurred. Direct software development costs that enhance the benefi ts of computer software programs and are 
clearly associated with an identifi able and unique software system, which will be controlled by the Group and has 
a probable benefi t exceeding one year, are recognised as intangible assets. These costs are initially capitalised as 
work-in-progress up to the date of completion of project after which the asset is transferred to computer software 
and accounted for as per the computer software and licenses policy. Management reviews the carrying value 
of capitalised work-in-progress on an annual basis, irrespective of whether there is an indication of impairment.

Development costs are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:
• it is technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use;
• management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it;
• there is an ability to use or sell the software product;
• it can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic benefi ts;
• adequate technical, fi nancial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the 
  software product are available; and
• the expenditure attributable to the software product during its development can be reliably measured.

1.3 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
All property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress is included at cost. Cost includes all costs directly 
attributable to bringing the assets to working condition for their intended use. Borrowing costs are capitalised in 
relation to plant requiring a substantial period of time for preparation for intended use. Buildings, infrastructure, 
plant, equipment and vehicles are depreciated on a straight line basis at rates that will reduce the historical 
costs to estimated residual values over the anticipated useful lives of the assets. Where buildings are erected on 
leasehold land or land held under a permission to occupy certifi cate with a fi nite life, the buildings are depreciated 
over the duration of the lease or permission to occupy certifi cate.
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Property, plant and equipment acquired under fi nance lease arrangements are capitalised. Such assets are 
depreciated on a straight line basis at rates considered appropriate to reduce capitalised cost to estimated residual 
value over the anticipated useful lives of the assets. Lease fi nance charges are amortised over the duration of 
the fi nance leases using the effective interest rate method. Properties subject to sale and lease-back transactions, 
where the lease is classifi ed as a fi nance lease and the value of the property implicit in the lease is higher than 
the carrying value, the carrying value is not adjusted and no gain is recognised. The residual value of assets is the 
estimated amount that the entity would currently obtain from disposal of the asset, after deducting the estimated 
costs of disposal, if the asset were already at the age and in the condition expected at the end of its useful life. 
A review of residual value is performed at balance sheet date each year, as well as an adjustment, if appropriate. 
The assets useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. The anticipated useful 
lives of the assets are as follows:

Furniture & fi ttings
 - Computers    3 years
 - Furniture   10 years

Equipment
 - Sundry equipment   5 years

1.4 INVENTORIES AND CONTRACTS IN PROGRESS
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based on weighted 
average principle, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring, converting the inventories and bringing them 
to their present location and condition. In the case of manufactured or constructed inventories and work in 
progress, costs include an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity. Net 
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary cause of business, less the estimated completion costs 
and selling expenses.

1.5 GOVERNMENT GRANTS
Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the entity has complied with the 
conditions attached to the grant and that the grant has been received.

Government grants whose primary condition is that the entity should purchase, construct or acquire non-current 
assets are deducted in arriving at the carrying amount of the assets.

Other government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with the costs 
for which they are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis. Government grants that are receivable as 
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purposes of giving immediate fi nancial support 
to the entity with no future related cost are recognised in profi t or loss in the period in which they are received.

Government grants received for specifi c loans and advances programmes are recognised as income when all 
the conditions of the grant have been fulfi lled and there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received.
 
1.6 OPERATING LEASE
Assets leased by the entity under which all the risks and benefi ts of ownership are effectively retained by the 
lessor are classifi ed as operating leases. Rentals payable under the operating leases are charged to profi t or loss 
on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.
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1.7 DEFERRED TAX
Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of 
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for fi nancial reporting purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities 
shall be measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability 
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet 
date. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable benefi ts will be available 
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

1.8 PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the entity has a present legal or constructive obligation 
that can be estimated reliably and it is probable that an outfl ow of economic benefi ts will be required to settle 
the obligation.

A provision for an onerous contract is recognised by the entity when the expected benefi ts to be derived by 
the entity from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligation under the contract. An 
onerous contract is a contract in which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract 
exceed the economic benefi ts expected to be received under it.

Contingent liabilities, which include certain guarantees other than fi nancial guarantees, are possible obligations 
that arise from past events whose existence will be confi rmed only by the occurrence, or non-occurrence, of one 
or more uncertain future events; not wholly within the entity’s control. Contingent liabilities are not recognized 
in the fi nancial statements but are disclosed in the notes to the fi nancial statements unless they are remote.

1.9 REVENUE
Net interest income
Interest income and expenses are recognised in profi t or loss on an accrual basis, with reference to the principal 
outstanding using the effective interest rate method.

The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a fi nancial asset or fi nancial 
liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective 
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the 
fi nancial instrument.

In terms of IAS 39, interest is accrued in respect of impaired advances based on the original effective interest rate 
used to determine the recoverable amount.
 
1.10 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
Non derivative fi nancial instrument
Non-derivative fi nancial instruments comprise investments in equity and debt securities, trade and other 
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, loans and advances, borrowings and deposits.

Non-derivative fi nancial instruments are recognised initially at fair value plus for instruments not at fair value, 
through profi t and loss, any directly attributable transaction costs, except as described below. Subsequent to 
initial recognition non-derivative fi nancial instruments are measured as described below. A fi nancial instrument 
is recognised if the entity becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are 
derecognised if the entity’s contractual right to the cash fl ows from the fi nancial assets expires or if the entity 
transfers the fi nancial asset to another party without retaining control or substantially all risks and rewards of 
the asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised if the entity’s obligations specifi ed in the contract expire or are 
discharged or cancelled.
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Financial Asset
Financial assets at fair value through profi t or loss
An instrument is recognised at fair value through profi t and loss if it is held for trading or is designated as 
such upon initial recognition. Financial instruments are designated at fair value through profi t and loss if the 
entity manages such investments and makes purchases and sale decisions based on their fair values. Financial 
instruments at fair value through profi t or loss are measured at fair value, and changes in value are recognised in 
profi t or loss. The fair value of publicly traded investments is based on quoted bid prices.

Loans and receivables
Loans and advances are non derivative fi nancial assets with fi xed or determinable payments, are initially measured 
at fair value plus origination transaction costs and subsequently accounted for at amortised cost using the effective 
interest rate method, less any impairment losses.

Trade and other receivables that have fi xed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are 
classifi ed as loans and receivables. Loans and other receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method, less any impairment charges.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid 
investments with original maturities of three months or less, net of bank overdrafts.

Other
Other non-derivative fi nancial instruments are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, 
less any impairment losses.

Impairment of fi nancial asset
Loans and advances are stated after the deduction of provisions for credit impairment.  Loans and advances are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment. Loans and 
advances are impaired and impairment losses are incurred if there is objective evidence of impairment, resulting 
from one or more loss events that occurred after initial recognition, that indicates it is probable the entity will be 
unable to realise all amounts due. The carrying amount of a fi nancial asset identifi ed as impaired is reduced to 
its estimated recoverable amount. The estimated recoverable amount of the advance is calculated as the present 
value of expected future cash fl ows discounted at the original effective interest rate at inception of the advance.

In estimating the expected future cash fl ows from the realisation of “permission to occupy” securities, past 
experience in realising this type of security has been taken into account. Subsequent to impairment, the effects 
of discounting unwind over time, based on the original effective interest rate.

The impairment of non-performing loans and advances is based on periodic evaluations of loans and advances 
and take account of past loss experience and the economic climate in which the borrowers operate. Impairment 
of performing loans and advances is accounted for if there is observable evidence that a loss event has occurred 
after the initial recognition of the fi nancial asset. In order to provide for latent losses in a portfolio of loans and 
advances that have not yet been individually identifi ed as impaired, a credit impairment for incurred but not 
reported losses is created based on historic loss patterns and estimated emergence periods. This impairment is 
referred to as unidentifi ed impairment.
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Once all reasonable attempts have been made at collection and there is no realistic prospect of recovering 
outstanding amounts, an advance is written off against the related impairment. Loans and advances impairments 
and any subsequent reversals thereof or recoveries of amounts previously written off are either charged or 
credited to the income statement.

Non current assets held for sale
Non-current assets (or properties in possession) are classifi ed as assets held for sale when their carrying amount 
is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. They are stated 
at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Derecognition of fi nancial assets
The entity derecognises a fi nancial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash fl ows from the asset expire; 
or it transfers the fi nancial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another 
entity. If the entity neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues 
to control the transferred asset, the entity recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability 
for amounts it may have to pay. If the entity retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a 
transferred fi nancial asset, the entity continues to recognise the fi nancial asset and also recognises a collateralised 
borrowing for the proceeds received.

1.11 IRREGULAR, FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE
Irregular, Fruitless and Wasteful expenditure means expenditure incurred in contravention of or not in accordance 
with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including:

- The PFMA
- Any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government. This is expenditure 
that would have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised. All irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
is charged against income in the period in which it is incurred and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted 
for as revenue in the statement of fi nancial performance.

1.12 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The entity accounts for subsequent events in terms of IAS10. The key issues recognised and disclosed include: 
Events after reporting period: Noting events favourable or unfavourable that occur between the end of the 
reporting period and the date that the fi nancial statements are authorised for issue.

Adjusting Event:
Events after the reporting period that provide further evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the 
reporting period which can impact on the going concern of the entity. These events will require an adjustment 
to the Annual Financial Statements.

Non-adjusting Events:
Events after the reporting period that are indicative of a condition that arose after the end of the reporting period 
but for which no adjustment is necessary.

1.13 NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATION  ADOPTED

Standard/ Interpretation Effective date Details

IFRS 9
Financial instruments

01-Jan-13 New standard that forms the  rst part 
of a three-part project to replace IAS 
39
Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement.



2.     LEASEHOLD ASSET

Richards Bay Industrial Development Zone Company SOC Limited has entered into a fi nancial lease agreement with 
Umhlathuze Municipality over land described as Erven 16178-16281 Richards Bay, forming Phase 1A of the industrial 
development zone. The lease is for an indefi nite period, that is, until date of transfer of the land to the company and the 
lease payments are a nominal R1.00 per annum. Monthly rates and taxes in respect of the leasehold are approximately 
R148,774.29 per month.

      

Total Furniture & 
Fittings

Offi ce in 
Equipment

Computers & 
Software’s

Work-
Progress

R R R R R

3.     PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2013
Carrying amount at beginning of year 31 168 27 630  -    3 538  -   

Cost 572 954 408 286 22 145 142 523  -   
Accumulated depreciation  (541 786)  (380 656)  (22 145)  (138 985)  -   

Current year additions  91 380 406  220 193  41 520  875 375  90 243 318 
Grants applied (91 380 406)  (220 193)  (41 520)  (875 375)  (90 243 318)
Depreciation for the year  (2 889)  (2 889)  -    -    -   
Write off  (553 160)  (388 492)  (22 145)  (142 523)  -   
Accumulated depreciation reversal  541 786  380 656  22 145  138 985  -   

Cost 19 794 19 794  -    -    -   
Accumulated depreciation  (2 889)  (2 889)  -    -    -   

Carrying amount at end of year 2013 16 905 16 905  -  -  -   

2012
Carrying amount at beginning of year 55 586 29 787  -    25 799  -   

Cost 572 954 408 286 22 145 142 523  -   
Accumulated depreciation  (517 368)  (378 499)  (22 145)  (116 724)  -   

Current year additions  30 956 133  436 877  56 951  276 744  30 185 561 
Grants applied (30 956 133)  (436 877)  (56 951)  (276 744)  (30 185 561)
Depreciation for the year  (25 509)  (3 248)  -    (22 261)  -   
Accumulated depreciation reversal  1 091  1 091  -    -    -   

Cost 572 954 408 286 22 145 142 523  -   
Accumulated depreciation  (541 786)  (380 656)  (22 145)  (138 985)  -   

Carrying amount at end of year 2012 31 168 27 630  -  3 538  -   
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4.     DEPOSITS
Tuzi Gazi properties - Occupation of offi ce buildings  175 816  175 816 
City of uMhlatuze - Electricity  25 300  25 300 

 201 116  201 116 

5.     ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES
Employee debtors 132 182 -
Other receivables 58 926 587 58 745 580

59 058 769 58 745 580

Ageing of past due but not impaired
30 to 60 days 801 949 -
60 to 90 days - -
90 to 120 days - -
>120 days 58 256 820         58 745 580

59 058 769 58 745 580

Included in the balance above is R 6 924 637.84 (2012: R6 709 525.24) that is held in 
trust by the conveyancers, Shepstone and Wylie pending the transfer of land and 
R51 200 000 (2012: R 51 200 000) deposit paid to City of uMhlathuze as part payment 
for the purchase of the land

6.     CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT
Cash and cash equivalents consists of:
Absa current 421 828 804 094
Absa call account 56 839 814 23 508 894
Petty Cash 3 537 3 642
Dti grant account 191 392 589 118 054 788
Land Purchase Account 146 288 799 140 313 826
Bank Balance 394 946 567 282 685 243
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7.     DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred taxation asset comprises:
- Adjustment  822 515 -
- Depreciation  (101 990)  (60 219)

        - Accumulated loss  (127 532)  (127 532)
- Provision for bonuses  (1 410 786)  (705 393)
- Provision for leave pay  25 575  (132)
- Rental smoothing  (82 888)  (39 805)

 (875 105)  (933 081)

Deferred taxation reconciliation:
Balance at beginning of the year (933 081) (117 708)

Movements during the year
- Adjustment  822 515 -

        - Depreciation  (41 770)  909 
- Accumulated loss  -  - 
-  Provision for leave pay  25 708  (105 856)
-  Provision for bonuses  (705 393)  (705 393)
-  Rental smoothing  (43 083)  (5 034)
-  Balance at end of the year  (875 105)  (933 081)

8.     SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised share capital
1000 ordinary shares of R1 each 1 000 1 000

Issued share capital
1000 ordinary shares issued @ R1 par value 1 000 1 000
1000 Province of Kwazulu Natal represented by its Department of Economic
Development and Tourism.

8.1  SHARE PREMIUM
Funds held to acquire assets in respect of shareholding 151 200 000 151 200 000
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9.     DEFERRED INCOME
Opening Balance 183 675 440 130 277 492
Government grants received during the year (excluding VAT) 214 592 982 105 302 632
Interest received on Dti grant (Capital grant) 4 137 915 5 210 973
Grants applied against operating expenditure (31 079 665) (26 159 523)
Grants applied against fi xed assets other than work in progress (1 137 088) (770 572)
Grants applied against work in progress (90 243 318) (30 185 561)

279 946 266 183 675 440

10.   ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
Accruals 9 278 088 2 218 482
Creditors rent straight line 14 077 167 945
Provision for leave 497 106 986 706
Accounts payable 2 398 038 4 987 799

12 187 309 8 360 932

11.   SOUTH AFRICAN REVENUE SERVICES- VAT
VAT (payable) / receivable (10 999 348) 641 183

Vat payable results from a VAT portion of grants received from the DEDT and the dti 
which is payable upon receipt of grant.

12.   GROSS REVENUE
Gross revenue comprises government grants recognised as income after taking VAT 
into account and is disclosed as follows:-     
Grants utilised against operating expenditure    
 31 168 386 26 356 716

13.   LOSS FROM OPERATIONS
Loss from operations is stated after taking the following into account:
Audit fees 245 767 820 090
  - for services as auditors (both internal and external)

Depreciation 2 889 25 509 
- Furniture & Fittings  2 889 3 248
- Offi ce Machines  -   -
- Computers & Software  -   22 261

Directors fees  1 701 044  393 533 
Staff costs 19 921 643 19 163 358
Legal fees 212 886  459 829
Lease payments  53 247  66 649
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14.   TAXATION
SA Normal tax comprises: 
Taxation for the year
Current taxation - 815 373
Deferred tax 764 540 (822 514)

764 540 (7 141)

Reconciled as follows :
Standard tax rate 28% 28%
Taxation on profi t for the year at the standard rate - -
Tax effect on permanent differences 764 540 (7 141)
Change in tax rate - -

764 540 (7 141)

Effective tax rate 28% 28%

15.   NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
15.1 Cash generated from operations
Profi t/(Loss) before taxation - 2 937 551
Adjustment for :
Impairments - -
- Depreciation  2 889  25 509 
Depreciation - write off  11 374  (1 091)
Finance income  (7 897 565)  (6 664 621)
Operating income before working capital changes  (7 883 302)  (3 702 652)
Working capital changes 15 211 697  2 763 536
Increase in accounts receivable  (313 188)  (521 384)
Deposit paid   -   (19 100)
Decrease in deferred tax asset 57 976  (815 374)
Decrease /(Increase )in VAT receivable  11 640 532 (515 617)
Decrease in accounts payable 3 826 377  4 635 011
Cash utilised / (generated) from operations:  7 328 395  (939 116)
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16.   INVESTMENT INCOME
Investment income comprises of interest received on short term funds deposits with 
ABSA bank and Nedbank conveyancers account.
Interest earned 7 897 565 6 664 621

17.   RELATED PARTIES
The company in the normal course of business entered into various related party 
transactions with its stakeholders. These transactions occurred under terms and 
conditions that are no more favourable to those entered into with third parties in 
arm's length  transactions

The following are defi ned as related party transactions:
Balance sheet items:

- Accounts receivable: Land Deposit paid to umhlathuze Municipality  51 200 000  51 200 000

Income statement items:
- Rates and taxes paid to uMhlathuze Municipality  1 732 316  1 529 683 
- Directors fees  1 701 044  393 533 
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Bonuses Allowance Leave Other * Total

R R R R R R
KEY PERSONNEL REMUNERATION 
- EXECUTIVE  MANAGEMENT
Executive Management as at 
31 MARCH  2013
Mr. SEI Nxedlana 
(Chief Executive Offi cer) 2 049 366 - 49 699 470 501 77 073 2 646 639
Mr. M Nkopane 976 158 100 000 70 800 - 50 750 1 197 708
Mr. RN Ngcamu 1 026 055 100 000 70 800 - 14 318 1 211 173
Mr. S Gumede 684 083 48 646 52 200 91 646 27 326 903 901
Mrs. N Zulu 988 611 100 000 70 800 - 23 078 1 182 489
Ms. N Sipunzi 228 186 - 15 400 4 414 - 248 000
Ms. Z Zeka 1 048 731 100 000 10 800 - 10 702 1 170 233

7 001 190 448 646 340 499  566 561 203 247 8 560 143

Executive Management as at 
31 MARCH  2012
Mr. SEI Nxedlana 
(Chief Executive Offi cer) 2 022 907 - - - 136 681 2 159 588
Mr. M Nkopane 923 592 - 74 400 - 28 816 1 026 808
Mr. RN Ngcamu 911 352 - 87 168 - 15 824 1 014 344
Mr. S Gumede 923 810 - 76 217 - 67 795 1 067 822
Mrs. N Zulu 927 880 - 74 400 - 13 371 1 015 651
Ms. N Sipunzi 1 067 672 - 92 400 - - 1 160 072
Ms. Z Zeka 983 585 - 14 400 - 12 233 1 010 218

7 760 798 - 418 985 - 274 720 8 454 503
* Other includes reimbursement costs for expenses incurred while on business trip in order to execute assigned duties.

Salary Total

R R
KEY PERSONNEL REMUNERATION - DIRECTORS
31 MARCH  2013
Ms B Kunene*  435 987  435 987 
Mr M Clark  256 611  256 611 
Ms T Eboka  125 386  125 386 
Mr Z Fihlani  114 153  114 153 
Mr A Mahlalutye  130 050  130 050 
Mr S Makhanya  130 050  130 050 
Mr D Mathfi eld**  -    -   
Mr E Mbatha  126 386  126 386 
Mr K Naidoo**  -    -   
Ms J Ndlovu  106 839  106 839 
Ms M Ndlovu  113 045  113 045 
Ms N Sithole***  127 717  127 717 
Ms LBR Mthembu****  34 823  34 823 

 1 701 044  1 701 044 
*  A provision has been raised based on MEC approved board remuneration
**  No remuneration paid as they are senior government offi cials representing the Department of Economic 
  Development and the dti     
***  Remuneration paid to Transnet foundation
**** Member of the Audit Committee (Non Board member)       
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Salary Total
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KEY PERSONNEL REMUNERATION - DIRECTORS
31 MARCH  2012
Mr DSD Shabalala  -    -   
Mr Z Gwala -  -   
Mr V Khumalo (Acting Chairperson)  323 192  323 192 
Mayor Z Mnqayi  -    -   
Clr. C Madlopha  -    -   
Clr. EF Mbatha  -    -   
Mr E L Khoza  -    -   
Mr SEI Nxedlana (Chief Executive Offi cer)  -    -   
Mrs LBR  Mthembu (Audit & Risk Committee - Chairperson)  70 341  70 341 

 393 533  393 533

2013 2012

R R

18.   COMMITMENTS
Operating lease commitments - A rental agreement for offi ce space was entered into 
with Tuzi Gazi properties for period of 3 years commencing on 1 May 2010.
The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
leases is as follows: 
Current  1 835 968  1 553 039 
Next 12 months 159 175 1 895 624
From 2 - 5 years - 159 175
Later than 5 years  -    -   
Total future cashfl ows 1 995 143 3 607 838

Other commitments
Current 53 247 66 649
Next 12 months 84 939 780 44 800 000
From 2 - 5 years 44 366 710 -
Later than 5 years - -
Total commitments 131 354 880 48 474 487



Notes 2013 2012

R R

19.   IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE
Opening balance  -    -   
Add: Irregular expenditure - current year  191 977  16 049 900 
Less ; amount condoned  (191 977)  (16 049 900)

 -    -   
Less amounts recoverable  (not condoned)  -    -   
Less amounts  not recoverable  (not condoned)  -    -   
Irregular expenditure awaiting for condonation  -    -   

Details of irregular Expenditure -Current year

Incident
Non compliance with supply chain management policy 
(Condoned by condoning authority- Accounting Authority)  191 977 16 049 900

Non compliance with subsistence and travel policy 
(Condoned by condoning authority- Accounting Authority)  -   -

Total  191 977 16 049 900 

20.   FINANCIAL  INSTRUMENTS
The company’s exposure to interest rate risk on fi nancial instrument at 
the balance sheet date as at:
31 MARCH  2013
Total fi nancial assets 
Trade and other receivable 59 058 769 59 386 763
Cash and cash equivalents 394 946 567 282 685 243

 454 005 336  342 072 007 

Total fi nancial liabilities
Trade and other payables 12 187 309 8 360 932

Credit Risk
The Company does not have huge debtors book, as a result, its exposure to credit risk is minimal. The items indicated 
under trade and other receivables refers largely to R51 .2 million land deposits for the Phase 1A. The cash and cash 
equivalents are deposits which are placed with A1 rating fi nancial institutions. The deposits comprise grants received 
from the Department of Economic Development and Tourism and Department of Trade and Industry, these funds are 
immediately available upon request. The Company limits its exposure by dealing with well-established fi nancial institutions. 
The Company does not have signifi cant exposure to an individual debtor or counter-party.

Liquidity Risk
The Company exposure to liquidity risk is very minimal as it is 100% funded by the Department of Economic Development 
and Tourism and the Department of Trade and Industry. The annual budgets are approved at the beginning of each fi scal 
year and  funding agreements concluded between the parties. Cash fl ows are monitored monthly against budgets and 
adjustments are made where necessary. Risk management assessments are conducted  to assist with identifying any 
possible cash fl ow, liquidity or other risks. In addition, the entity is exploring opportunities for raising income to ensure 
the sustainability of the organisation in case the grant is reduced or cut back.

Interest Rate Risk
Although the Company’s funds are subject to interest rate risk, these funds are placed with reputable fi nancial institutions. 
The entity does not hedge any of its funds but monitors the fl uctuations in interest rates and obtains advice from bank 
offi cials on a regular basis.
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21.   PROVISIONS
21.1 Leave Pay Accrued

Opening balance 986 706 630 126
Movement during the year (489 601) 356 580
Closing balance 497 106 986 706

Leave pay is determined using historical data based on the past services offered by the 
employees. Leave pay is accrued as required by IAS 19.

21.2 Provision for Bonuses
Opening balance  2 519 262 -
Performance bonuses paid (1 272 877) -
Performance bonuses  2 295 611 2 519 262

3 541 996 2 519 262
The Company remunerates employees on performance as per Company policy.

22.   INTEREST UTILISED AGAINST ACCUMULATED LOSS 
Accumulated  loss at the beginning of the period -          (2 930 410)
Interest revenue applied -          (2 930 410)

The Company has received authority during 2012 fi nancial period from the Department of Economic Development and 
Tourism to apply interest earned on land acquisition account against accumulated loss.

23.   CONTINGENT  LIABILITIES
23.1 Service provider - This matter relates to service provider challenging the supply chain management processes of the 
Company. While the Company is of the opinion that it would be able to successfully defend the matter, the outcome was 
not known at year end.

23.2 A former employee has fi led a litigation claim with the CCMA against the Company.

23.3 The Company is in disagreement with the City of uMhlathuze regarding the monthly rates payable on Phase 1A 
plus which the Company had fenced as his own, the dispute is at its prelimanary stage and no verdict has been taken as 
at year end.
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Grants applied  31 079 665  26 159 523 
Other income  88 721  197 193 
Tender fees  19 737  44 386 
OCJ claim  -  152 807 
Other income  68 984  - 

Expenditure  39 065 951  30 083 786 
Advertising and promotion  1 112 064  767 775 
Agents commission  12 135  15 100 
Audit fees  245 767  820 090 
Asset written off  11 374  -   
Bank charges  18 104  24 400 
Bursaries  24 404  118 523 
Cellphones and internets  69 024  312 364 
Cleaning services  26 253  32 274 
Corporate social investment spending  67 932  8 396 
Depreciation  2 889  25 509 
Directors' fees  1 701 044  393 533 
Electricity and water  101 407  89 128 
Insurance  68 183  62 665 
Lease charges  53 247  66 649 
Legal fees  212 886  459 829 
Maintenance  125 965  94 489 
Marketing materials  515 411  563 237 
Postage, printing and stationery  323 192  363 349 
Professional services  8 294 716  1 052 396 
Property rates and taxes  1 732 316  1 529 683 
Refreshments  172 962  196 622 
Recruitment and transfers  7 167  42 169 
Rental expenses  1 682 101  1 553 039 
Employee cost  19 921 643  19 163 358 
Security services  22 056  21 131 
Subscriptions  339 460  240 487 
Telephone and fax  178 778  171 381 
Training  294 053  206 020 
Venue hire and exhibitions  48 138  31 657 
Travel and accommodation  1 681 281  1 658 532 
Profi t/ (loss) before fi nance income  (7 897 565)  (3 727 070)
Investment income  7 897 565  6 664 621 
Surplus for the year -  2 937 551 
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AGM Annual General Meeting IPAP Industrial Policy Action Plan

AGSA Auditor General of South Africa MEC Member of Executive Council

APP Annual Performance Plan MOU Memorandum Of Understanding

BBBEE Broad Based Black  Economic Empowerment MTEF Medium Term Expenditure Framework

CCA Customs Control Area OHSAS Occupational Health and Safety 
Advisory Services

CCMA Commission for Conciliation, Mediation 
and Arbitration

PFMA Public Finance Management Act

CEO Chief Executive Of  cer RBIDZ Richards Bay Industrial Development Zone

CFO Chief Financial Of  cer SARS South African Revenue Services

DEDT Department of Economic Development 
and Tourism

SCM Supply Chain Management

DMS Data Management System SEZ Special Economic Zone

EIA Environmental Impact Assessment SHEQ Safety Health Environment and Quality

GIS Geographic Information System SMME Small Medium and Micro Enterprise

HR Human Resources TIA Traf  c Impact Assessment

ICT Information and Communication Technology the dti Department of Trade and Industry

IDZ Industrial Development Zone TR   Treasury Regulations
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